Sacramento County Department of Health Services
Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB)

Meeting Agenda’
March 15, 2024 / 9:30 AM to 11:00 AM

Meeting Location

Community Room 2020 at 4600 Broadway / Sacramento, CA
o The Community Room 2020 is easily accessible without staff/security needing to let you in. It is at the top
of the back stairs (near the Broadway entrance, not the garage entrance).

Public comment will be taken after each agenda item (but before any vote is taken) and at the
end of the meeting.

Topic

Opening Remarks and Introductions — Suhmer Fryer, Chair
¢ Roll Call and Welcome
e *Review and Approval of 02/14/24 CAB meeting minutes

Brief Announcements — All
¢ Michelle Besse, Health Program Manager, has started

e CAB member computer support update

HRSA Project Director Update — Dr. Mendonsa

HRSA Medical Director Report — Dr. Mishra

*Review and Approval of the 2024 SCHC Quality Improvement Plan — Sharon Hutchins

CAB Governance

e Committees Updates to CAB — Committee Chairs

o Clinical Operations Committee — Vince Gallo
» *Review of Policies and Procedures
» 02-05: Variance Reporting
» 03-03: Incident Reporting
» 03-05: After Hours Services
» 04-25: Request to Change Provider
» 11-01: Sliding Fee Discount
o Finance Committee — Laurine Bohamera
= Revised End of the Year (2022-2023) Financial Status Report - Summary
= January Financial Status Report
= Update on grants
o *Governance Committee — Jan Winbigler
» Reminder for all members to complete Conflict of Interest and Ethnics training
=  *Review of 2024 Co-Applicant Board Member Recruitment Plan
= Bylaws revision proposal — first reading
= Preparation for HRSA Operational Site Visit

March Monthly Meeting ltems — All

e HRSA Project Director Report
02/21/2024 v.2 1

This agenda, the minutes (once prepared and approved) and handouts for this meeting can be found on the CAB website:
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx



https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx

Sacramento County Department of Health Services
Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB)

¢ HRSA Medical Director Report

e Committee Updates
o *Policy and Procedure Review:
= TBD
February Financial Status Report
*Review and vote on proposed Bylaws revisions
Preparation for HRSA Operational Site Visit
o Recruitment and Training Updates

O O O

Public Comment Period — Laurine Bohamera, Vice-Chair

Closing Remarks and Adjourn — Suhmer Fryer, Chair

Next Meeting: Friday, April 19, 2024 / 9:30-11:00 AM
Brown Act training will be conducted for CAB members from 11-12 on 3/15 following the meeting.

*Items that require a quorum of CAB members and vote.
The Co-Applicant Board welcomes and encourages public participation in the meetings. Matters on the agenda may be
addressed by members of the public at the end of that agenda item. In addition, matters under the jurisdiction of the Co-

Applicant Board and not on the posted agenda may be addressed by the public following completion of regular business.

The agenda is posted on-line for your convenience at https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-
Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx

Per the Brown Act, CAB members attending a CAB meeting through teleconferencing are required to disclose the location
from which they are calling. It is illegal to call while driving. There is a cap on how many members can attend from outside
Sacramento County.

Meeting facilities are accessible to persons with disabilities. Requests for interpreting services, assistive listening devices or
other considerations should be submitted by contacting the Primary Health Division at (916) 875-5701 (voice) and CA Relay
Services 711 (for the hearing impaired), no later than five working days prior to the meeting.

02/21/2024 v.2 2

This agenda, the minutes (once prepared and approved) and handouts for this meeting can be found on the CAB website:
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx



https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx

Sacramento County Department of Health Services
Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB)

Meeting Minutes
February 14, 2024 / 11:00 AM to 1:00 PM

Meeting Location
4600 Broadway, Sacramento, 95820 / 2" Floor, Community Room 2020

Meeting Attendees

CAB Members: Elise Bluemel, Laurine Bohamera, Suhmer Fryer, Vince Gallo, Areta
Guthrey, Nicole Miller

Members Excused: Jan Winbigler

SCHC Leadership: Sharon Hutchins, Andrew Mendonsa, Sumi Mishra, Noel Vargas

SCHC Staff: Robyn Alongi, Rachel Callen, Stephanie Hofer, Adam Prekeges, Robert
Rushing, Bahir Mohammad Zahiri

Community Members: None

Public comment will be taken after each agenda item and at the end of the meeting.

Topic

Opening Remarks and Introductions — Suhmer Fryer, Chair

¢ Roll Call and Welcome
o Chair Suhmer Fryer welcomed attendees and took roll.
o Staff introduced themselves.

e *Review and Approval of 01/19/24 CAB meeting minutes

o Vince Gallo made a motion to approve the January 19, 2024, minutes as written. Areta
Guthrey seconded the motion.
o A roll-call vote was taken.
» Yes votes: Elise Bluemel, Laurine Bohamera, Suhmer Fryer, Vince Gallo, Areta Guthrey, Nicole
Miller
» No votes: None
» The motion passed.

Brief Announcements — All
e Bahir Zahiri is returning to the Refugee program.

e Brown Act Training will take place from 11 — 12 pm after the March CAB meeting.

HRSA Project Director Update — Dr. Mendonsa

e Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) / Sacramento County Office of

Education (SCOE) School Based Mental Health Updates

o The Health Center, County leadership, and SCOE continue to meet.

o A draft updated contract/agreement has been created and sent to HRSA for feedback. We
will begin pursuing memorandums of understanding between Sacramento County and the
school districts with a satellite site.

o When the contract is finalized contract, it will be presented to CAB.

02/07/2024 v 1 1

This agenda, the minutes (once prepared and approved) and handouts for this meeting can be found on the CAB website:
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx



https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx

Sacramento County Department of Health Services
Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB)

e HRSA and Medi-Cal Audits / Facility Site Reviews

o The Health Center preparing for the HRSA site visit and Medi-Cal audit expected to occur
this spring.

e Healthy Partners, Medi-Cal Expansion, and Medicare Updates

o About 900 patients remain enrolled in the Healthy Partners Program. We expect continued
decline as Medi-Cal expansion continues.

o We received notification that some patients who are Medi-Medi (Medi-Cal and Medicare
coverages) will have the option to move to a provider who is contracted with a new
Medicare program. We have decided to postpone exploring expanded Medicare contracting
until after priority projects are completed.

o Referrals for Medicare patients are a concern, and we need to ensure we can process them
in a timely manner.

e Improved Access

o The Health Center continues to work to increase specialty access with an outside
consultant. MGR is working with staff and analyzing data to develop recommendations. We
anticipate a report and recommendation by summer.

o The Health Center has been working to increase access to care and we are seeing results.
For example, our call center wait time has significantly decreased and is under five minutes.

e Referral Department Improvements

o Referrals remain a focus for the management team. Dr. Mishra and Debbie Burrow are

leading the improvements. Dr. Mishra will provide updates in her report.
e General Updates

o Health Center staff and providers have started a two-session training series on Gender
Affirming Care. The training aims to educate staff, provide resources, and share tools and
best practices.

o Sacramento County Department of Health Services is in the process of redesigning the
website. The redesign process includes soliciting input from users, community members,
staff, and Board members. You can complete the survey here:
https://forms.office.com/g/SfDQUQqvjf0.

» We are aware that the existing website has accessibility issues. The redesign team has
contacted County IT to ensure they are tracking the issue as part of the new design/features.

e CAB Laptops
o Pursuing CAB laptops remains an active project. We should be able to use existing laptops
and add a standalone Microsoft Office package and license. Staff is exploring camera
options, and speaker and microphone options for laptops without built-in options.

HRSA Medical Director Report — Dr. Mishra

o Referral Processing
o We continue to fine tune the workflow to decrease the processing time.
o The go live date for the Care Team Model pilot is February 27.
o Staff for the pilot have been hired.
o Recruitment for a Referral Nurse Supervisor continues.

02/07/2024 v 1 2

This agenda, the minutes (once prepared and approved) and handouts for this meeting can be found on the CAB website:
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx



https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx
https://forms.office.com/g/SfDQUqvjf0

Sacramento County Department of Health Services
Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB)

o When the pilot is implemented, Dr. Mishra and Debbie Burow will transition out and the
consultants will take over.

e Referral Scanning
o The new workflow has staff prioritizing scanning of abnormal image reports to ensure
providers act on the results quickly.
o Referrals scanning processes have been improved and they are caught up.

e Audits — State and Federal
o Facility and Medical Record Review
» The Medical Director is meeting with all clinical program leads including Adult Medicine,
Pediatrics, Obstetrics, school-based sites, and the Homeless program to discuss the audit
requirements, how to display our compliance, and to identify gaps.

e Staffing
o Radiology technician (X-ray tech): We are interviewing candidates to assist the current X-
ray tech and to give us time to recruit a permanent Sr. Radiology Technician.
o Nurse Practitioner: The County will reopen the list of candidates due to the low response
during the first round of recruitment.

» Noel Vargas said that the Health Center is competing for NPs with Adult Correctional Health for
work at jails. The County added differentials into the salaries for Corrections, so the pay is more
competitive. We are considering an increase in salary for Health Center NPs. We need to look at
student loan forgiveness options. We are researching a HRSA program that pays off student
loans in two to five years.

*Final FFY 2024-2025 Budget Review and Approval — Rachel Callan and Stephanie Hofer

e Growth

o Stephanie Hofer shared the updated growth request document and went over each
requested position. We will have final information in June 2024.

o Limited term positions are funded with ARPA funding. The funding ends December 2024.
These positions will be terminated when the funding ends. Staff can move to open
positions, or they will be laid off. We will continue to encourage staff to apply for open
permanent positions.

o Ifthe fiscal landscape is different in June, we will reevaluate positions.

e The Budget Documents

o The budget documents were presented.

o Costs have increased and the changes are reflected in the budget comments. Increases
include allocated cost increases, cost of living allocations (COLA), salary costs, and
contracted rates.

» Services and Supplies are contract costs (UCD, SCOE, janitorial, Quest Lab,
consultants) for things we need to operate.

o There is a $2.9M increase over last year.

e Reimbursements

o These are funds from another County department, division, or program.

o There is an approximately $1M decrease over last year due to the decrease in Healthy
Partners patients and things like radiology.

e Revenue

02/07/2024 v 1 3

This agenda, the minutes (once prepared and approved) and handouts for this meeting can be found on the CAB website:
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx



https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx

Sacramento County Department of Health Services
Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB)

o $22M for 2023-24. We are expecting $24M in 2024-25.
e General Fund
o General funds are mostly used to cover our unavoidable cost increases such as COLAs
and allocated cost increases from other departments. We do not have control over these
costs. FY 23-24 was $3.9M. There is an increase of $1.2M for 2024-25.
e *Review and Approval of Budget
o Elise Bluemel made a motion to approve the 2024-25 budget. Laurine Bohamera seconded
the motion.
o A roll-call vote was taken.

» Yes votes: Elise Bluemel, Laurine Bohamera, Suhmer Fryer, Vince Gallo, Areta Guthrey, Nicole
Miller

= No votes: None

=  The motion passed.

*Review and Approval of Submission of 2023 Uniform Data Systems (UDS) Report to
HRSA — Sharon Hutchins and Adam Prekeges

¢ Annual Uniform Data System
o Staff presented the data and went over the data in detail.
o Tables were redacted where there was a value of 10 or less.
o HRSA now requires us to break down ethnicity into smaller categories. If you choose not to
disclose your race, you will automatically be included in not-Hispanic.
o We had an increase of 1,300 patients over the previous year.
e Financial Data
o Staff presented UDS financial data and explained the data and how the information is
derived.

e Approval of Submission of 2023 UDS Report
o Vince Gallo made a motion to approve submission of the 2023 UDS report. Nicole Miller
seconded the motion.
= A roll-call vote was taken.
» Yes votes: Elise Bluemel, Laurine Bohamera, Suhmer Fryer, Vince Gallo, Areta Guthrey,
Nicole Miller
» No votes: None
» The motion passed.
o Elise Bluemel made a motion to extend the meeting for 30 mins to complete CAB business.
Laurine Bohamera seconded the motion.
= A roll-call vote was taken.

» Yes votes: Elise Bluemel, Laurine Bohamera, Suhmer Fryer, Vince Gallo, Areta Guthrey,
Nicole Miller

» No votes: None

» The motion passed.

*Review and Approval of the 2024 SCHC Quality Improvement Plan — Sharon Hutchins

o Staff presented the 2024 SCHC Quality Improvement Plan and highlighted the
changes.

02/07/2024 v 1 4

This agenda, the minutes (once prepared and approved) and handouts for this meeting can be found on the CAB website:
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx



https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx

Sacramento County Department of Health Services
Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB)

o A member would like the QI Plan to include patient access measures. For example, vending
machines that people with disabilities can use, accessible bathrooms, and access to the
tables upstairs.

o The 2024 SCHC QI Plan will be returned to the Clinical Ops Committee for discussion and
brought back to a future CAB meeting.

CAB Governance

e Committees Updates to CAB — Committee Chairs
o Clinical Operations Committee — Vince Gallo
» *Review of Policies and Procedures
» 03-01: Telephone Protocol
» Minor revisions were made to the protocol including phone numbers and adding
information about access to MyChart.
» Vince Gallo made a motion to approve the 03-01: Telephone Protocol. Elise Bluemel
seconded the motion.
» A roll-call vote was taken.
v Yes votes: Elise Bluemel, Laurine Bohamera, Suhmer Fryer, Vince Gallo, Areta
Guthrey
v" No votes: None
v' The motion passed.
» 04-01: Patient Satisfaction Survey
» Revisions included identifying the different sites and adding sites where the survey will be
implemented.
v' Members made changes to the staff script. Language was added to have the staff offer
to place the survey into the collection box.
v' A member would like to have demographic data included in the survey.
v' CAB would like staff to research other survey vendors.
v' Members support the idea of smaller, more direct patient surveys throughout the year.
» Vince Gallo made a motion to approve 04-01: Patient Satisfaction Survey with the changes
to the staff script. Elise Bluemel seconded the motion.
» A roll-call vote was taken.
v' Yes votes: Elise Bluemel, Laurine Bohamera, Suhmer Fryer, Vince Gallo, Areta
Guthrey
v" No votes: None
v" The motion passed.
» 07-05: Credentialing and Privileging
» Laurine Bohamera made a motion to approve 07-05: Credentialing and Privileging. Areta
Guthrey seconded the motion.
» A roll-call vote was taken.
v Yes votes: Elise Bluemel, Laurine Bohamera, Suhmer Fryer, Vince Gallo, Areta
Guthrey
v" No votes: None
v' The motion passed.
» 08-20: Registration of Patient Deaths
» Vince Gallo made a motion to approve 08-20: Registration of Patient Deaths. Elise Bluemel
seconded the motion.
» A roll-call vote was taken.
v' Yes votes: Elise Bluemel, Laurine Bohamera, Suhmer Fryer, Vince Gallo, Areta
Guthrey.
02/07/2024 v 1 5

This agenda, the minutes (once prepared and approved) and handouts for this meeting can be found on the CAB website:
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx



https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx

Sacramento County Department of Health Services
Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB)

v" No votes: None
v" The motion passed.
o Finance Committee — Laurine Bohamera
» End of the Year (2022-2023) Financial Status Report — not discussed
» December (Mid-Year) Financial Status Report — not discussed
» Update on grants — not discussed
» *Review of Policies and Procedures
» 11-03-Budget-Development-and-Procurement-Compliance
» Changes included incorporating language to state the policy is in compliance with HRSA
and other federal requirements. Language was added regarding expansion of specific uses
or prohibited use of federal funds.
» Elise Bluemel made a motion to approve 11-03: Budget Development and Procurement
Compliance policy. Laurine Bohamera seconded the motion.
» A roll-call vote was taken.
v' Yes votes: Elise Bluemel, Laurine Bohamera, Suhmer Fryer, Vince Gallo, Areta
Guthrey
v" No votes: None
v' The motion passed.
o *Governance Committee — Jan Winbigler — Not discussed
» Recruitment Update
» Bylaws revision proposal
» Preparation for HRSA Operational Site Visit

March Monthly Meeting ltems — All

e Brown Act Training

e HRSA Project Director Report

e HRSA Medical Director Report

e *Review of 2024 SCHC Quality Improvement Plan

e Committee Updates
o *Policy and Procedure Review:

» P&P 11-01: Sliding Fee Discount

> TBD
December (Mid-Year) Financial Status Report
Recruitment and Training Updates
Final Evaluation of the 2020-2023 Strategic Plan
Review of 2024-2026 Strategic Plan baselines for metrics
o Preparation for HRSA Operational Site Visit

O O O O

Public Comment Period — Laurine Bohamera, Vice-Chair
¢ No public comment was made.

Closing Remarks and Adjourn — Suhmer Fryer, Chair
The meeting was adjourned at 1:46 pm

Next Meeting: Friday, March 15, 2024 / 9:30-11:00 AM

02/07/2024 v 1 6

This agenda, the minutes (once prepared and approved) and handouts for this meeting can be found on the CAB website:
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx



https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx

Sacramento County Department of Health Services
Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB)

*Items that require a quorum of CAB members and vote.

The Co-Applicant Board welcomes and encourages public participation in the meetings. Matters on the agenda may be
addressed by members of the public at the end of that agenda item. In addition, matters under the jurisdiction of the Co-
Applicant Board and not on the posted agenda may be addressed by the public following completion of regular business.

The agenda is posted on-line for your convenience at https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-
Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx

Per the Brown Act, CAB members attending a CAB meeting through teleconferencing are required to disclose the location
from which they are calling. It is illegal to call while driving. There is a cap on how many members can attend from outside
Sacramento County.

Meeting facilities are accessible to persons with disabilities. Requests for interpreting services, assistive listening devices or
other considerations should be submitted by contacting the Primary Health Division at (916) 875-5701 (voice) and CA Relay
Services 711 (for the hearing impaired), no later than five working days prior to the meeting.

02/07/2024 v 1 7

This agenda, the minutes (once prepared and approved) and handouts for this meeting can be found on the CAB website:
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx



https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx

HRSA Project Director Updates
March 15, 2024 CAB Meeting

1. Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) / Sacramento County Office of Education (SCOE) School
Based Mental Health Updates
e Arevised version of the contract/agreement has been drafted and submitted to HRSA for their valuable
feedback. Our next strategic initiative is initiating Memoranda of Understanding between Sacramento
County and school districts that house satellite sites. Additionally, we are actively engaging with other
Federally Qualified Health Centers to formalize referral relationships that will enhance collaborative
healthcare services.

2. HRSA and Medi-Cal Audits / Facility Site Reviews
e The Health Center is actively preparing for multiple imminent audits scheduled in the coming months. In
March, we are set to undergo a comprehensive Medi-Cal audit, followed by a federal government HRSA
audit in May. Our pharmacy 340b program will be audited in the Spring. Our diligent preparations
underscore our commitment to ensuring transparency, regulatory compliance, and the seamless
delivery of high quality healthcare services.

3. Healthy Partner, Medi-Cal Expansion, and Medicare Updates
e Enrollment in the Healthy Partners Program continues to decrease with the expansion of Medi-Cal.
Approximately 850 clients remain in Healthy Partners. These clients likely have Medi-Cal but have not
tried to access services since 1/1/2024. They will be disenrolled from the Healthy Partners Program once
coverage is verified.
e We have decided to postpone Medicare exploration until after priority projects are completed.

4. Improved Access
e Our dedicated efforts at the Health Center persist as we actively collaborate with an external consultant
to enhance specialty access. MGR is deeply engaged in working alongside our staff, meticulously
analyzing data to formulate comprehensive recommendations. The culmination of this diligent process
is expected to yield a detailed report and a set of impactful recommendations, anticipated to be ready
for presentation by the summer. Leadership remains committed to achieving significant strides in our
pursuit of improved healthcare access.

5. Referral Department Improvements
e The process to streamline the Referrals Department to meet timely access requirements continues to be
a focus of the management team. Consultants are onsite to take over day to day management of the
program and to support staff. Dr. Mishra will share updates and insights in her report reflecting the
substantial efforts underway to drive improvements.

6. Health Center Growth / Staffing

We await our Growth Request to go through the approval process and have no further updates at this
time.

7. General Updates
e The Health Center’s Street Medicine program was highlighted in a recent UC Davis news feature. It can
be viewed at: https://health.ucdavis.edu/news/features/street-medicine-team-improves-lives-of-
unhoused-patients/2024/02. The Health Center’s Street Medicine program is dedicated to delivering

HRSA Project Director Report — March 15, 2024 CAB Meeting


https://health.ucdavis.edu/news/features/street-medicine-team-improves-lives-of-unhoused-patients/2024/02
https://health.ucdavis.edu/news/features/street-medicine-team-improves-lives-of-unhoused-patients/2024/02

primary care services to the homeless population, as it directly addresses the unique healthcare
challenges faced by this vulnerable group. By bringing medical professionals to the streets, this initiative
not only ensures accessibility to essential healthcare but also fosters trust and builds relationships,
contributing to a more holistic and compassionate approach to healthcare for individuals experiencing
homelessness. The program plays a pivotal role in improving health outcomes, promoting dignity, and
breaking down barriers to healthcare access for those living on the streets.

We are delighted to announce the addition of Dr. Michelle Besse, LMFT, to our esteemed senior
management team in the capacity of Health Program Manager. Dr. Besse brings a wealth of expertise,
having dedicated nearly a decade to the Sacramento County Behavioral Health Services Division before
seamlessly transitioning to lead initiatives within the Primary Health Division. Particularly noteworthy is
Dr. Besse's distinguished doctorate in healthcare administration, underscoring her commitment to
advancing healthcare leadership and contributing to the strategic growth of our organization. With the
addition of Dr. Besse to the Health Program Manager team, Health Center leadership has started to
rebalance the programs and service lines to ensure span of control equity.

The Administration Team is elated to celebrate the recent promotion of Adam Prekeges to the position
of Administrative Service Officer Il (ASO-II). This significant milestone not only recognizes Adam's
individual achievements but also underscores his invaluable contribution to the team's collective
success. Adam's elevation to this role signifies a pivotal moment for our team as we look forward to
harnessing his wealth of skillsets and experience to enhance our overall effectiveness. Adam's ascension
to the ASO-Il position is a testament to his exemplary teamwork and the ability to collaborate
seamlessly with colleagues. His collaborative spirit has been a driving force behind the success of
numerous projects within the Health Center. By fostering a culture of teamwork, Adam has
demonstrated an unwavering commitment to the shared goals and objectives of the Administration
Team. Adam Prekeges' promotion symbolizes not only an individual achievement but also a collective
stride towards innovation, teamwork, and adept handling of competing priorities within the
Administration Team.

The Department of Health Services (DHS) is actively collaborating with the Clarity Research Group to
initiate comprehensive workforce climate surveys involving all staff members. The primary objective of
these surveys is to gather invaluable insights that will serve as a foundation for enhancing our Health
Center's work environment as well as across the department. By assessing employee morale and
satisfaction, these surveys aim to provide a platform for staff members to express their concerns and
perspectives openly. The results of these surveys will play a pivotal role in informing department,
division, and Health Center leadership about specific areas that require improvement, contributing to
the overall enhancement of our organizational culture. This strategic initiative aligns seamlessly with the
objectives outlined in our Strategic Plan, reflecting our commitment to fostering a positive and
supportive work environment. The survey outcomes will guide targeted actions within our division and o
influence broader departmental strategies aimed at cultivating a conducive and inclusive workforce
culture. This research comes at an opportune moment, as it directly addresses a key focus area
highlighted in our Strategic Plan, reinforcing our dedication to proactive and data-driven decision-
making. | look forward to sharing the comprehensive findings from these surveys with CAB. They will
undoubtedly serve as a valuable resource for shaping our ongoing efforts to promote employee well-
being and organizational excellence.

HRSA Project Director Report — March 15, 2024 CAB Meeting



5@}\1\/\ ENTO Sacramento County Health Center
Y

COUNT Co-Applicant Board

Medical Director Report to CAB
March 15, 2024

State Medi-Cal Audit
¢ The Medi-Cal audit is expected to take place sometime between 3/18-3/28.
¢ The audit includes a Facility Site Review and Medical Record Review
e Sumi pulling 30 charts (10 for Adult Medicine, 10 for Pediatrics, and 10 OB charts) and
reviewing to ensure they meet Medi-Cal documentation requirements.

Staff Recruitment

e Supervising Radiology Technician - continued challenge with recruiting so we are in the
process of hiring a Radiology Technician (limited scope).

¢ Nurse Practitioner - the County list needs to be reviewed to see if there are any new
candidates.

e Supervising RN for Referrals - There is interest from internal and external registered
nurses. Interviews are happening.

o Office Assistants and Medical Assistants for the Referral Team to process the backlog and
the new care team model - we continue to fill vacancies and to grow the program.

e Public Health Aide - hiring is in process. This position will divide time between the Street
Medicine team, providing health education and medication access assistance, and the HIV
grant.

e Physician maternity leave - the selected candidate to provide coverage backed out so we
have restarted the recruitment process.

Referrals Program

e Care Team model went live on 2/27/24 for diagnostics in Adult Medicine and all referrals in
Pediatrics. We will assess efficiency and success in a month after referral staffing is
stable.

e Consultants have stepped in to oversee the program while recruitment for a supervisor
continues. They have done an excellent job in providing leadership by identifying and
problem solving, engaging, and communicating with the referrals team, creating
productivity and accountability, and improving morale.

Programs and Services

e UCD proposal to add Hepatitis C clinics - A meeting will occur at the end of March to
review the budget in the UCD contract.

e Radiologist contract - amendments have been made with radiologist to stay within budget.

o Refugee Health - the requirement for in person health assessments was reinstated last
October. We have recruited two temporary Nurse Practitioners from UCD to increase
capacity for in person health assessments. This will help us keep up with the large number
of incoming refugees and allow the program to develop a workflow for in-person visits.



ACRAMENTO

COUNTY

Sacramento County Health Center

Quality Improvement Plan

2024

Department of Health Services
Primary Health Division
Approved by CAB on



OVERVIEW

Sacramento County Health Center (SCHC) has a systematic approach to quality measurement and quality
improvement. The Quality Improvement (QI) Plan outlines the process that includes methods to monitor
performance and implement changes in practice when necessary, with follow up measurement to determine
whether new practices positively affected performance.

Review of data is essential to the QI process. Data can include but is not limited to performance indicators,
satisfaction surveys, member concerns (complaints, grievances), service utilization, medication errors,
chart review, etc. Compliance and risk management are also integral to quality management. The Health
Center is a public entity and has separate units or departments for Compliance (HIPAA), risk management,
contracts, fiscal, safety, information management, and legal counsel.

Health Center Vision
- To be an exceptional health care center valued by the communities we serve and our team.

Health Center Mission
- To provide high quality, patient-focused, equitable healthcare for the underserved in Sacramento
County, while providing training for the next generation of local health care providers.

Values
e Accountability e Diversity e Excellence e Respect
e Compassion e Equity e Education

Quadruple Aim

- Patients feel that the SCHC cares about and works to improve their well-being, safety, and
experience in a respectful way;

- Reducing health inequities and assisting patients in achieving better health outcomes through best
practice and/or evidenced based guidelines;

- Responsible management of funds to ensure economic sustainability of health center; and

- Care Team members understand and believe in their role and are supported to carry it out in a
positive environment.

Guiding Principles for Service Provision
- Access to care for routine, same day, and new member appointments;
- Respect, sensitivity, and competency for populations served;
- A safe and attractive environment for clients, visitors, and staff;
- A work culture that acknowledges all team members provide essential high-quality services;
- Effective communication and information sharing;
- Effective and efficient use of resources to sustain the mission;
- Implementation of data-informed practices; and
- Continuous improvement.



PROGRAM STRUCTURE

Quality Improvement Committee (QIC)

L.

2.
3.

6.

The QIC provides operational leadership and accountability for clinical continuous quality

improvement activities.

QIC meets at least monthly or not less than ten (10) times per year.

The QIC members represent different disciplines and service areas within the Health Center, and

include the Division Manager, Medical Director, Pharmacy Director, QI Director, program

supervisors, designated Administrative Services Officer, physicians, and other clinical staff.

QIC responsibilities include:

a. Develop the annual QI Plan that includes a specific approach to Continuous Quality

Improvement (CQI) based on the Quadruple Aim and present it to the Co-Applicant Board

(CAB) for adoption.

Establish measurable objectives and indicators of quality based upon identified priorities.

Oversee quality improvement teams working on projects

d. Monitor data indicating progress toward clinical goals related to Patient Experience and
Population Health Outcomes.

e. For clinical indicators out of target range, develop actions and strategies for Health Center
Management Team implementation.

f.  Report to the CAB on clinical quality improvement activities and outcomes at least quarterly.

Management Team responsibilities include:

a. Implement strategies and provide education to staff on clinical quality standards and metrics.

b. Monitor data indicating progress toward the goals related to Reducing Costs and Care Team
Well-Being.

c. For economic and personnel indicators out of target range, develop actions and strategies for
Health Center Management Team implementation.

d. Report to the CAB on non-clinical quality improvement activities on a regular basis.

e. Report back to the QIC.

Health Center Co-Applicant Board (CAB) role includes:

a. Execute authorities outlined in Clinic Services PP 01-02: Co-Applicant Board Authority.

b. Delegate authority and responsibility for the QI Program to the QIC.

c. Review, evaluate, and approve the Quality Improvement Plan annually and receive quarterly
reports on identified quality indicators.

°c o

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS & ANALYSIS

Performance Indicators are identified and measured as part of the quality improvement initiatives.

They:

Have defined data elements;

Usually have a numerator (who/what was changed) and denominator (of what eligible group)
available for measurement; and

Can detect changes in performance over time and allow for a comparison over time.

Outcomes / Process Measurements are those that:

Identify measurable indicators to monitor the process or outcome;




- Collect data for specified time period, or ongoing;
- Are compared to a performance threshold or target; and
- Evaluate the effectiveness of defined action(s).

Data Analysis establishes:
- Priorities for improvement;
- Actions necessary for improvement;
- Whether process changes resulted in improvement; and
- Performance of existing key processes.

Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) — Clinic Services frequently utilizes the Plan—-Do—Study—Act
(PDSA) method for focused intervention.

PLAN Identify area target not met.
Identify most likely cause(s) through data review.

Identify potential solution(s) and data needed for evaluation.

DO Implement solution(s) and collect data needed to evaluate the solution(s).
STUDY Analyze the data and develop conclusions.
ACT Recommend further study or action. May need to abort, adapt, or adopt. This decision

depends upon the results of the analysis. If the proposed solution was effective,
decisions are made regarding broader implementation including the development of a
communication plan, etc. If the solution was not effective, QI team returns to planning
step.

COMMUNICATION AND COORDINATION

Communication

Problems may be identified from data, staff or management experience, concerns, audits, or agency
feedback. Managers are responsible for:

1. Sharing the plan including indicators and targets with staff at all levels;

2. Including multidisciplinary staff from all areas of operations in problem identification;
developing strategies, implementing interventions via QI team projects, and review of data
analysis;

3. Providing information alerts or policy and procedure guidance; and

4. Imbedding key priorities into Health Center policies, training, and other core materials.




CONFIDENTIALITY AND PRIVACY OF PERSONAL HEALTH INFORMATION

All data and recommendations associated with quality management activities are solely for the
improvement of patient experience, patient care, economic sustainability, or the well-being of the care
team. All material related to patient care is confidential and accessible only to those parties responsible
for assessing quality of care and service. All proceedings, records, data, reports, information, and any
other material used in the clinical quality management process which involves peer review shall be held
in strictest confidence and considered peer review protected.

The Health Center will minimize use of identifiable protected health information for quality measurement
to protect it from inappropriate disclosure. Reports for committee review regarding data analysis and
trending shall not disclosure a client’s protected health information. Use of aggregate data or reports will
be maintained in the CAB meeting minutes.

Personal health information obtained because of a client complaint or appeal is kept in a secure area and
is only made available to those who have a need to know. Computer access to personal health information
about a client’s complaint or appeal is password protected and only accessible to those who need access.

Clinic Services Policies & Procedures Manual and the County Office of Compliance have extensive
policies and procedures for health information management and protected health information.

2024 QUALITY IMPROVEMENT GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Annually, the Health Center selects Quality Improvement goals and objectives for each part of the
Quadruple Aim. The Quality Improvement Committee (QIC) is responsible for oversight of two of the
Aims: Patient Experience and Population Health Outcomes. The Management Team is responsible for
Reducing Costs and Care Team Well-Being.

AIM: Patient Experience: Patients feel that the SCHC cares about and works to improve their well-
being, safety, and experience in a respectful way.

e Goal 1: Improve Access to Care

o Objective 1-1: Improve Access by Telephone During and After Hours
= Reduce the amount of time patients spend on the phone by:
» Reduce the Longest Queue time by at least 5 minutes under the 2023
baseline.
= Develop Daily Targets and Performance Dashboard using above metrics.

o Objective 1-2: Reduce No Shows
» Reduce No Shows by 5% for each program.
= Develop PCP and department level OCHIN dashboards displaying provider
utilization, schedule utilization, average lead time, no-show rate, and time lost.
»  Track appointment reminders to see how many are completed (i.e. patient responds
by confirming or cancelling the appointment).




Objective 1-3: Increase Appointment Access

* Increase availability of appointments after regular business hours by conducting a
minimum of 12 after hours (Saturdays and/or evening) clinics.

= Increase access to clinical resources for Gap Closure activities.

= Develop PCP and department level OCHIN dashboards displaying provider
utilization, schedule utilization, average lead time, no-show rate, and time lost.

= Track the percentage of new members who get new member appointments within
120 days of being assigned to SCHC and how many of these are completed (e.g. have

Objective 1-4: Reduce Time from Referral/Order to Appointment
=  Ensure at least 25% of referrals are processed within the DHCS timely access

= Develop Referral OCHIN dashboard displaying key metrics including but not limited
to the time from order to sending to IPA for prior authorization, to authorization
decision, to schedule, and then to visit completion.

Objective 1-5: Improve Accessibility of Services and Health Center Buildings.

= Create maps and directory information in braille and the languages (other than
English) spoken by at least 3,000 English-limited residents of Sacramento County
and the threshold languages identified by the Department of Health Care Services
(Cantonese, Dari, Farsi, Hmong, Mandarin, Pashto, Spanish, Russian, Ukrainian,

= Ensure waiting room access for those in wheelchairs by marking defined spaces.

= Validate OCHIN provider dashboards for empaneled patients.
= Develop training tools for PCP level quality activities, including how to utilize the

»  Track the number of non-urgent appointments that are with the patient’s PCP as a

= Develop pre-visit planning workflows for patient registration in Family Medicine,
Adult Medicine, Behavioral Health, and Pediatrics utilizing OCHIN tools for Health

= Track pre-visit quality activities (i.e., checks of health maintenance section prior to

* Develop daily targets & performance dashboard using above metrics.

o
all components including SHA).
o
requirements.
o
Vietnamese) as well as large print.
Goal 2: Improve Customer Service
o Objective 2-1: Improve Continuity of Care
provider dashboard.
measure of continuity of care.
o Objective 2-2: Improve Pre-Visit Planning
Maintenance.
patient visits).
Goal 3: Improve Patient Engagement
o Objective 3-1: Improve Patient Outreach

» Increase the percentage of active adult patients with activated My Chart from 31% to
35% by December 31, 2024,

» Ensure contact by visit or outreach (call/letter/text) with all empaneled patients at
least once per calendar year.

* Develop OCHIN dashboard tools for tracking patient engagement.

= Increase the number of languages in which standard text messages are sent.



o Objective 3-2: Improve Supports for Health Literacy and Patient Education
= Track access to and time to engage interpreter services.
= Increase access to Pharmacy supported education services for patients with diabetes
by 10% over 2023.
= Expand access to patient education materials available in languages other than
English and in large print.

Aim: Population Health Outcomes: Reducing health inequities and assisting patients in achieving better
health outcomes through best practices, innovation, and/or evidence-based guidelines.

Care Coordination

e Goal 4: Prepare To Apply For NCOA PCMH Accreditation or Similar Program For Enhanced Care
Team Approaches.

o Objective 4-1: Staff Training For Project Leaders

o Objective 4-2: Self-Assessment

e Goal 5: Improve Care Coordination of Patients with High Service Utilization or Who Require
Services Across Systems

o Objective 5-1: Increase Percentage of Patients Receiving Follow Up (within seven days) of
ED Visit or Hospitalization.

= FUA
= FUI
= FUM

o Objective 5-2: Increase Utilization Of Non-PCP Resources For Care Gap Closure.
= Pharmacy Services
=  RN/MA Resources

o Objective 5-3: Increase the Number of Multi-Visit Patients Participating In Complex Care
Coordination (CCC) and Care Management.
= Telephone coordination
* Plan-provided and ECM services

Clinical Performance Measures

e Goal 5: Achieve Minimum Performance Level (MPL) on Select Uniform Data System (UDS) and
Healthcare Effectiveness Data and Information Set (HEDIS) Quality Measures Focused on a Healthy
Start in Life.

o Objectives:
»  Prenatal/Postpartum care
= Lead Screening
»  Childhood Immunizations at Age 2 (CIS)
*  Adolescent Immunizations (IMA)
= Well-child visits for children 15 to 30 months of age (WCV-30)
»  Well-child visits for children and youth 3-21 years of age (WCV 3-21)



Goal 6a: Achieve MPL on Select UDS and HEDIS Quality Measures Focused on Primary or
Secondary Prevention of Health Issues Prevalent among SCHC Patients.

o Objectives:
= Breast Cancer Screening (BCS)
= Cervical Cancer Screening (CCS)
= Colorectal Cancer Screening (CRCS)
= Influenza Immunizations
=  Tobacco Screening

Goal 6b: Achieve High Performance Level (HPL) for HEDIS Quality Measures Focused on Primary
Prevention of Health Issues Prevalent Among SCHC Patients.

o Objectives:
= Chlamydia Screening
= Hypertension Management: Blood pressure Control

Goal 7: Achieve MPL on Select UDS and HEDIS Quality Measures Focused on Care Coordination
and Treatment for Chronic Conditions Prevalent among SCHC Patients.

o Objectives:
= Diabetes Management: Alc Testing and Control
* Diabetes Management: Retinopathy screening
= Diabetes Management: Kidney Care
= Diabetes Management: Neuropathy
» Cardiovascular Disease: Statin Therapy
= HIV Care: Viral Suppression

Goal 8: Improve Performance on Select UDS and HEDIS Quality Measures Focused on Diagnosis
and Treatment of Mental, Behavioral Health and Substance Use Related Conditions among SCHC
Patients.

o Objectives:
* Depression Screening and Follow Up
= Depression Response and Remission at 12-Months

Goal 9: Improve QI Support and Infrastructure.

o Objective 9-1: Track Staff Effort and Financial Impact of QI Projects to Help Build the QI
Program.

o Objective 9-2: Develop OCHIN Standard Reporting Tools for Quality Performance.
= Review and validate available measures within OCHIN for each patient experience,
care coordination, and clinical quality metric.

= Develop functional QI dashboards for the following areas:
» Leadership/Administration
» Adult Medicine, Family Medicine, Pediatrics, Integrated Behavioral

Health, SCOE, Refugee

» QI (Population Health), Care Management, Referrals
» Front Desk, Registration, Call Center
» Provider/Clinician




e Goal 10: Address Racial and Ethnic Disparities Identified in Select UDS and HEDIS Quality
Measures.

o Objective 10-1: Reduce Racial and Ethnic Health Disparities in The Control Of Diabetes and
Hypertension.

o Objective 10-2: Reduce Racial and Ethnic Health Disparities in Access To Prenatal and
Postpartum Care.

o Objective 10-3: Reduce Racial and Ethnic Health Disparities in Complex Care Management.
=  Develop OCHIN dashboard reports that show racial and ethnic breakdowns for key
performance measures.
= Use the results to direct focus of quality improvement to health outcomes and groups
with the greatest disparities and health burden.
»  Work with UC Davis experts on the effective measurement of health inequities and
effective strategies to reduce them.

o Objective 10-4: Reduce Disparities in Health Outcomes among Individuals with Disabilities.

= Develop OCHIN dashboard reports that show breakdowns for key performance
measures by disability status.

Aim: Reducing Costs: Responsible management of funds to ensure economic sustainability of health
center.

Goal 1: Develop a Dashboard of Indicators to Monitor the Relative Costs and Revenues Associated with
Specific Programs and Practices.

o Objective 1: At Least Semi-Annually, Produce Calculations of the Number of Visits and Total
Revenue per:

= Clinical department/program (Adult Medicine, Behavioral Health Services, Dental Services,
Family Medicine, Homeless Services, Mobile Services, Pediatrics, Refugee, School-Based
Mental Health, Specialty Services)

= Provider type

=  Provider FTE

*  Medium (i.e. video, phone, and in person appointments)

Goal 2: Revise Provider Productivity Target and Optimal Patient Empanelment Numbers.

Aim: Care Team Well-Being: Staff members understand and believe in their role and are supported to
carry it out in a positive environment.

Goal 1: Increase Recognition of the Quality of SCHC Services and Delivery Models.

o Objective 1: Earn more HRSA Badges.

o Objective 2: Prepare for Nationwide Accreditation for Patient-Centered Care Coordination (e.g.,

PCMH).

Goal 2: Improve Morale and Retention of the Care Team.




o Objective 1: Develop and Conduct Internal Personnel survey by July 2024.

o Objective 2: Identify One to Three Areas for Action from the Personnel Survey Findings to Improve
Care-Team Well-Being by December 2024.

o Objective 3: Review Personnel Survey Findings and Institutional Policies and Practices to Determine
if Changes Can Be Made to Improve Retention.

Goal 3: Develop Structure for Multi-Level Staff Engagement and Communication.

o Objective 1: Develop and/or Review Individual Position Duty Statements; Revise if needed.

o Objective 2: Develop Expectations for 1:1 Supervisory Meetings with Staff.

o Objective 3: Schedule at least Quarterly Meetings for Supervisors and Managers to Meet with Staff
to Promote Communication and Standardization.

2024 QUALITY IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS FOCUSED ON PATIENT EXPERIENCE
AND PATIENT HEALTH OUTCOMES

For several years, SCHC has been working on projects to address specific key measures. For 2024, we
will continue working on increasing performance on key measures, with an additional concentrated focus
on ensuring that Management has the tools needed, included OCHIN, to establish a culture of quality at
the health center.

1. The first category of projects is those that affect all or most clinical programs at SCHC and to
which most programs can and should contribute. The clinical programs are Adult Medicine,
Family Medicine, Integrated Behavioral Health, Pediatric Preventive Dental Services, Pediatrics,
Radiology, Refugee Health Assessment, and School-Based Mental Health.

2. The second category of projects is those that all or most clinical programs at SCHC and will be
led by staff from clinical support programs. Administration, Quality Improvement, Registration,
Member Services, and Referrals are examples of clinical support programs.

3. The third category of projects is those that affect more than one clinical program area, but which
will be led by a single clinical program.

4. The fourth category of projects is those that are specific to and led by a single program area,
whether clinical or non-clinical.

When appropriate, projects will incorporate strategies to improve other related measures (e.g., W-30
project will work on CIS and lead screening measures, and Diabetes Alc Control project will also work
on kidney health and eye exam measures.)

Additional projects may be proposed to or by the QIC as the need arises, such as not being on course to
achieve the objectives (see previous section) or converting tracking objectives to targeted objectives. QI
projects may be proposed to QIC using the standard form and process by any provider or program
representative. QIC will evaluate proposals and incorporate approved projects into overall QI plan and
schedule.

Category 1A Projects: Clinic-Wide Projects that Impact all Programs.
2024 Projects

10



Review and validate patient OCHIN registries and key performance measures
Design and develop OCHIN dashboards
Design and develop OCHIN training standards.

Lead: OCHIN Steering Committee & QIC

Category 1B Projects: Clinic-Wide Projects to Which Most Programs Contribute

2023 Projects Continuing in 2024
Reduce No Shows/Increase Provider Utilization
Lead: QIC

Category 2 Projects: Clinic-Wide Projects Led by Support Programs

2023 Projects Continuing in 2024
Increase New Patient Outreach and the Percentage Who Receive an Initial Health Assessment
Lead: Member Services

Reduce Wait Times in the Call Center
Lead: Call Center

Conduct Pre-Visit Planning to Eliminate Missed Opportunities for Health Maintenance
Lead: Registration

Reduce Processing Time for Non-Urgent Referrals
Lead: Referrals

Increase the Number of Patients That Receive a Depression Screening and Follow Up
Lead: Integrated Behavioral Health Team

Category 3 Projects: Affecting More than One Clinical Program Led by one Clinical Program

2023 Projects Continuing in 2024
Increase the Number of Patients That Receive a Cervical Cancer Screening
Lead: Family and Adult Medicine

Increase the Number of Patients That Receive Follow Up After ED Visit or Hospitalization for Mental
Health or Substance Use
Lead: Integrated Behavioral Health

Increase Well-Child Visits 0-30 Months (including required immunizations)
Lead: Pediatrics

Increase the Percentage of Diabetic Patients with Controlled Blood Sugar
Lead: Adult Medicine/Diabetes Team

Increase the Number of Patients That Receive a Breast Cancer Screening
Lead: QI Team

Increase the Number of Patients That Receive a Colorectal Cancer Screening
Lead: QI Team

1"



Category 4 Projects: Affecting a Single Clinical Program Led by that Clinical Program

2023 Projects Continuing in 2024
Increase the Number of Pregnant Patients That Receive a Prenatal Screening
Lead: Family Medicine and Adult Medicine

Increase the Number of Post-Partum Patients That Receive a Post-Partum Visit
Lead: Family Medicine and QI Team

12



Policy Issuer . .
Y Clinic Services

County of Sacramento (Unit/Program)
Department of Health Services Policy Number 11-01
Division of Primary Health Services .
Policy and Procedure Effective Date 02-01-12
Revision Date 02-2003-0511--
24
Title: Sliding Fee Discount Program Functional Area: Fiscal Services

Approved By: Andrew Mendonsa, PsyD-MBA, +Division Manager

Policy:
A. Background and Purpose

The Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) has designated the Sacramento
County Health Center (SCHC) as a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC). As an FQHC,
the SCHC is required to abide by regulations regarding service provision to low income
patients. Section 330 of the Public Health Service Act contains these regulations.

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that no patient is denied health care services due to
inability to pay for such services and to ensure that any fees or payments charged by the
SCHC for such services will be reduced or waived if a patient is eligible for the Sliding Fee
Discount Program (SFDP), as outlined by HRSA.

B. Definitions

Sliding Fee Discount Program (SFDP): A set of tiered discounts based on the Federal
Poverty Level Guidelines for HRSA-required and additional services:

e Applicable to all individuals and families with annual income at or below 200 percent
of the Federal Poverty Level (FPL) Guidelines;

e Providing a full discount for individuals or families with annual incomes at or below
100 percent of the FPL;

e Providing an adjustment of fees based on family size and income for individuals and
families with income above 100 and at or below 200 percent of the FPL; and

e Providing no sliding fee discounts for individuals and families with annual income
above 200 percent of the FPL.

See Attachment A: SCHC Sliding Fee Tables for the most current SFDP tiers and
nominal charges per service category.

Federal Poverty Level (FPL): The annual income level below which a person (or family) is
considered to be living in poverty, depending on family size, that is set in January each year
by US Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) and published in the Federal
Register (see https://aspe.hhs.gov/poverty-guidelines). The SCHC sliding fee discount
program is based on current FPL levels and is updated annually.

Family: For the purposes of assessing the federal poverty level, a “family” consists of those
members supported by the reported income—typically the individuals reported on the
federal tax return.

HRSA Required and Additional Services: The set of services that any FQHC is required to



https://aspe.hhs.gov/poverty-guidelines

provide (directly or indirectly by agreement with another provider) to patients under federal
regulations and additional services that an FQHC adds to its official scope of work with
approval by HRSA. See Aftachment B: SCHC Scope of Services for the most current list of
services covered by the SFDP.

Nominal Charge: A small, flat fee that is “nominal” from the patient’s perspective and is
unrelated to the actual cost of the service provided. The purpose of the charge is to enhance
the perceived value of health care services received without creating an economic barrier to
receiving care.

C. Applicability of the Sliding Fee Discount Program (SFDP)

Sacramento County Health Center (SCHC) maintains a standard set of procedures for its
SFDP. These procedures apply to all patients regardless of health coverage or immigration
status. Sliding fee discounts (SFDs) are available to patients with income at or below 200%
of the FPL. Patients living below 100% of the FPL are assessed a nominal charge per visit
as allowed by HRSA and approved by the Co-Applicant Board (see Aftachment A: SCHC
Sliding Fee Tables).

The SFDP applies to HRSA'’s required and additional services for SCHC, which constitute
all services within SCHC’s Scope of Services and all HRSA required services provided by
non-SCHC providers through an agreement between SCHC and another party. Attachment
B: SCHC Scope of Services contains the list of services for which patients may be eligible
to receive a sliding fee discount. The SFDP does not cover visits outside of SCHC'’s Scope
of Services (i.e., other than the HRSA required and additional services). For example, if a
patient covered by a Managed Medi-Cal plan is approved by that health plan for cosmetic
plastic surgery (which is outside of SCHC’s Scope of Services) but is subject to a co-pay for
that service, the patient may not receive a SFD from SCHC for that co-pay.

Any patient seeking a HRSA--required or additional service from SCHC who meets the
SFDP eligibility requirements may receive a SFD. For such patients with health insurance,
the SFDPs appliesy to non-covered services, co-payments, deductibles, and coinsurance,
as well for services (i.e., sensitive services) for which a patient does not wish to use their
insurance coverage. Patients with coverage that cannot be used to pay for services at
SCHC (i.e., 3" party pay or self-pay patients) are also covered by the SFDP.

B. Establishing and Reviewing the Sliding Fee Schedule and Nominal Charge

The SFD Schedule and any nominal charge are set annually after Conrgress-DHHS
publishes the federal poverty guidelines in the Federal Register (typically in January). Staff
reviews discounts offered by similar entities (e.g. FQHCs, Community Health Centers) in
the area and takes costs into account. Staff also reviews the nominal charge for continued
appropriateness, comparing fees charged by similar entities in the area. SCHC leadership
may engage a consultant to assist with this review. Staff may recommend no change or
propose a modification to the discount schedule to the SCHC Co-Applicant Board (CAB).
Recommendations are presented to the CAB for review and approval no later than the April
meeting each year, except under extraordinary circumstances.

Procedures:

Sacramento County Health Center personnel and contractors follow a standard set of
procedures for

e Informing patients and patient guardians or conservators about the SFDP;




e Assessing patients’ eligibility for the SFDP;

e Assisting patients to apply for the SFDP and verifying application documentation;
e Providing and billing for services at discounted prices for those in the SFDP;
+—Reviewing SFDP patients’ continued SFDP eligibility at least annually; and

e Monitoring and evaluating the impact of the SFDP.
A. Communication about the SFDP to Patients

Signage posted at each primary care delivery site and on the SCHC’s website informs
patients of the SFDP. In addition, the new patient packet contains information on the SFDP,
including eligibility requirements and the process to apply. Finally, information about the
SFDP is communicated to patients when staff conducts new patient outreach, schedules a
new patient appointment, or when revised income or family size information provided by an
existing patient alters eligibility.

Assessing Patients’ Eligibility for SFDP

1. New Patients

a. Upon enrollment with SCHC, a Patient Service Representative (PSR) determines
whether a patient has healthcare coverage by checking Medi-Cal, Medicare, and
healthcare portals. This information is recorded, or updated, if necessary, in the
Electronic Medical Record (EMR) system—OCHIN EPIC (“OCHIN”).

i. Patients without health care coverage are encouraged, but not required,
to apply for coverage, because it is a valuable asset that can improve a
patient’s health trajectory and assist them to establish and maintain a
medical home.

1) The PSR informs the patient about possible sources of health
coverage, including:

a) Medi-Cal;
b) Medicare;

c) Healthy Partners (Sacramento County’s program for
undocumented individuals aged 27-49 years); and

d) Other public and/or private health insurance and/or discount
programs available for which the patient may qualify,
including prescription drug assistance from pharmaceutical
companies.

2) The PSR asks the patient if they would like a referral to a health
care navigator to assist them in understanding what coverage
options may be available as well as assistance with insurance
enrollment. If the patient agrees, the PSR will refer the patient to
either Member Services (for Sacramento County’s Healthy
Partners) or Sacramento Covered (for the other programs).

3) Inform patients <200% FPL that we have a SFDP and ask if
they may be interested in applying. If the patient says yes,
explain how to apply, including giving them an application.




ii. Patients with health care coverage

1) If the patient’s health care coverage is not accepted for payment by
SCHC (i.e. is provided by an organization with which SCHC does
not have a contract, agreement or other arrangement to provide
payment)

a. The PSR informs the patient of this fact and that they will
be responsible for paying for the services on their own.
PSR and-offers the patient assistance to identify their
assigned medical home or to identify a provider that may
accept the coverage or to apply for the Sliding Fee
Discount Program._If the patient would still like to receive
services from SCHC, the PSR informs the patient that they
will be financially responsible for their services reed-to-pay
forservices-out-ofpocket. If such a self-pay patient meets
eligibility requirements, they can receive a SFD for SCHC
health care services.

2) If the patient’s coverage is accepted for payment by SCHC but
coverage requires patient flnanC|a| responsibility for a portion of

charges incurred

(e.g. has-a-co-pay, deductible, or coinsurance) or for all HRSA
required and additional services, the patient can receive a SFD for
SCHC health care services if they meet SFDP eligibility
requirements.

b. Prior to enroliment, the PSR asks the patient to provide their family (see
Definitions section) income and family size (among other demographic
information) and records this information in OCHIN. OCHIN calculates the FPL
automatically and flags the eligibility of the patient for the SFDP.

c. If the patient is eligible for the SFDP, the PSR explains the program to the patient
and asks if the patient would like to apply. Please see Section C: Application
Process for SFDP below for next steps.

2. Existing Patients

a. Prior to each appointment, a Member Services PSR verifies whether an existing
patient has healthcare coverage by checking Medi-Cal,-Medicaid;-and-healtheare
pertalsrelevant eligibility portal(s). The PSR records or updates, as appropriate,
this information in OCHIN.

b. During check in for each appointment, the registration PSR obtains (or updates)
the patient’s income, family size and residential address (among other
demographics) and records it in OCHIN.

i. If a change to an existing patient’'s income, family size, and/or residency
makes them eligible for the SFDP, the registration PSR explains the
program to the patient, provides them with the SCHC Sliding Fee
Information Sheet (see Attachment C) either in person or via a mutually
acceptable electronic method, and asks if the patient would like to
apply. Please see Section C: Application Process for SFDP below for
next steps.

ii. If a change to an existing patient’s income, family size, and/or residency
changes the SFDP Tier for which the patient is eligible or makes them

~—| Commented [1]: sugges

"comprehensive". That's
medical billing and cover
of breadth of services co
something like, if coverag
responsibility for a portiol




ineligible for the SFDP, the PSR explains this fact to the patient and lets
them know that SCHC will bill (using the new status) for services

provided.

B. Assisting Patients to Apply for SFDP

1.

2—The Member Services PSR meets with the patient (by phone or in person) to explain the
type of documentation required to show their income, family size, and residency in

Sacramento County (see table en-the-next-pagebelow).

When a patient indicates interest in applying for the SFDP, the PSR asks the patient to
complete the Sliding Fee Application (see Attachment D) and refers the patient to

Member Services for assistance in completing the application and identifying appropriate
documentation.

— | Commented [2]: Need t

decline to use their insur:

Income
Income includes: Verification (one of the following):
Wages before deductions (federal gross e Paycheck stub (most recent pay
income) period)
e Current tax return (required if self-
employed)

Letter from employer on letterhead

Affiliated agency income
verification documentation

Other income such as pension, retirement,
social security, worker’'s compensation,
unemployment, public assistance, alimony,

Award letter
Paycheck stub

etc.

If no income o Self-Attestation of Income form
Family Size

Family: those Patient attestations are used for verification.

members supported
by the reported
income—typically
the individuals
reported on the
federal tax return

People to include in
family size:

The applicant

Applicant’s spouse or registered domestic partner
Applicant’s children

Any individuals related to and living with the applicant
counted as dependents

Any individuals not related to but living with the applicant
counted as dependents

People not to
include:

Individuals who do not live with the applicant, unless
economically dependent on the applicant

Individuals who are temporarily living with the applicant
Roommates/housemates living with applicant who reside
in group quarters or housing

County Residency




Residency is defined as living in | Verification by a reoccurring bill with an address
Sacramento County, or intent to | within Sacramento County. e.g. a utility bill or a
live in Sacramento County. rental agreement with the head of household’s
name and an address within Sacramento County.

3:2. Patients who refuse to complete the SFDP application or to provide required
documentation are not granted a sliding fee discount and will be assessed full charges
for the services (or portion for which they are financially responsible under any health
care coverage).

4.3. If a patient learns about the SFDP just before a scheduled visit, the PSR
informs them that SCHC will provide presumptive SFDP eligibility for the visit if they
bring in the required documentation before their next visit. Patients who fail to provide
required documentation are not granted the SFD and will retroactively be billed full
undiscounted charges for the visit with presumptive eligibility.

54. The Registration PSR scans all documentation provided into the FDS Consent
to Bill module in the patient's OCHIN chart. The patient is eligible for a SFD when all
documentation is received and FPL criteria for a discount are met.

6:5. Using the attached sliding fee schedule (see Attachment A), the Member
Services PSR determines the specific amount of discount for which the patient is
eligible.

6. While a patient is awaiting their determination of eligibility from Medi-Cal,
Medicare, or Healthy Partners, they will be offered a SFD for services based on their
self-reported income, if all other required documentation is provided. If health care
coverage is subsequently retroactively granted to the date of service, SCHC will
refund any SFD payments accepted.

&7. SFDP eligibility remains in effect for 12 months once SFDP eligibility is
established.
9:8. Patients granted SFDP enrollment are notified of their responsibility to inform

SCHC of any change in income, family size, or residency during this 12-month period.
. Billing for SFDP

For the purposes of determining the amount owed by a patient under the SFDP, each visit to
SCHC is considered to be separate regardless of the day of service. For example, if a
patient has a primary care visit at SCHC on the same day that they receive x-ray services
and see the cardiologist at SCHC, each is considered a separate visit and the appropriate
SFD (if any) will be applied to each visit separately. Visits to external providers (including
Quest Laboratory) contracted by and/or paid by SCHC are also considered separate visits.

SCHC does not collect payment at the time of visit (see Clinic Services Policy 11-02 Billing
and Collections). Patients are informed that they are expected to pay and will receive a bill.
Discounts for each tier of the SFDP and the nominal charge are published in tables easily
accessible by patients (see Aftachment A: SCHC Sliding Fee Tables). As detailed in Clinic
Services Policy 11-02 Billing and Collections, SCHC leadership may grant a waiver of
charges accrued by a participant in the SFDP due to economic hardship.

. Reviewing Continued Eligibility for SFDP

Patients are required to be re-qualified for the SFDP annually by providing new/updated
documentation of income, family size, and residency. Prior to each visit, a Member Services
PSR checks whether existing patients are enrolled in the SFDP. If they are, the PSR checks
the annual review date. If that review date is within 6 weeks of the appointment date, the
PSR informs the patient and requests the patient provide updated documentation of income,



family size and residency.
E. Monitoring Adherence to SFDP policies

1. Each month, the supervisor of Member Services examines data to monitor adherence to
this SFDP policy and procedure, including reviewing:

a. 10% of the charts of patients flagged for eligibility for SFD by OCHIN to determine
if the appropriate SFD was offered to the patient; and

b. 10% of current SFDP patient charts per month to ensure that required

documentation was obtained and scanned and that patients’ status was reviewed
annually.

e—If they find deviations from this policy and procedure, the Member Services
supervisor

d.c.Reviews the error and proper procedure with the staff member who made each
error. Repeated errors may result in disciplinary action.

e.d. If a pattern of errors is found for multiple individuals, all PSRs are retrained on
the policy and procedure.

2. The Member Services supervisor reports on the findings of the compliance monitoring
monthly at the Compliance Team meeting. Findings of systemic deviations may also

result in a quality improvement project being implemented and overseen by the Quality
Improvement Committee.

F. Evaluating Effect of the SFDP on Patient Usage of Health Services
At least once every three years, SCHC evaluates its SFDP by:

1. Collecting utilization data that allows assessment of the rate at which patients within

each of its discount pay tiers, and those at or below 100% of the FPL, are accessing
services;

2. Utilizing this and, if applicable, other data (for example, results of patient satisfaction
surveys or focus groups, surveys of patients at various income levels) to evaluate the
effectiveness of its SFDP in reducing financial barriers to care; and

3. Identifying and implementing changes as needed.

References:

HRSA Compliance Manual, Chapter 9: Sliding Fee Discount Program
PP-CS-11-02 Billing and Collections

PP-CS-01-01 Quality Improvement

_Attachments:

Attachment A: SCHC Sliding Fee Tables
Attachment B: SCHC Scope of Services
Attachment C: Sliding Fee Information Sheet
Attachment D: SCHC Sliding Fee Application
Attachment E: Self-Attestation of Income Form

Contact:
Jehn-Dizen,-HPM for HRSA Issues (for Policy questions)
Sandra Johnson (for Procedure questions)

“B ﬂ Formatted: Indent: Left:



https://bphc.hrsa.gov/programrequirements/compliancemanual/chapter-9.html#titletop
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-11-02-Billing-and-Collections_for%20CAB_APPROVED.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-11-02-Billing-and-Collections_for%20CAB_APPROVED.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS%2001-01-Quality%20Improvement.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS%2001-01-Quality%20Improvement.pdf
http://inside.dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Attachments/Sliding%20Fee%20Table.docx?d=w0ac60eaeb216402e8ac46f527d337cad
http://inside.dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Attachments/Sliding%20Fee%20Information%20Sheet.doc?d=wf6d5f56bb7244e06bbed2ee705769654
http://inside.dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Attachments/Sliding%20Fee%20Discount%20Application.doc?d=wf3673dbcb5c94a27ab4b08d7ad84bbd9

Approval by the Co-Applicant Board:



AC RAM ENTO Sacramento County Health Center

COUNTY

Attachment A: Sliding Fee Discount Schedule Tables
2024



LefEs
secs SACRAMENTO

Sacramento County
Health Center



Formatted: Heading 4, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0",
Right: 0", Space Before: 5.9 pt, Line spacing: single,
Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No border), Left:
(No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No border)

Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Indent: Left: 0", Space
Before: 5.9 pt, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No
border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between :
(No border)

Persons-in Nominal FierA TierB FierC TierD Full-Price Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Indent: Left: 0", Space
il E Before: 5.9 pt, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No
border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between :
e el I e e e (No border)
1 <$14,580 $14,581—$20.120 $20,121 —$21,870 $21,871—$25.515 $25.,516 —$29,160 2$29.164 Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Indent: Left: 0", Space
Before: 5.9 pt, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No
2 £$19,720 $19,721—$27.214 $27,215—$29,580 $29,581 —$34,510 $34,511—$39,440 2539444 border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between :
3 $$24,860 | $24,861—$34,307 | $34,307—$37,200 | $37,201—$43,505 $43,506—$49,720 | 2$49,721 (No border)
/ Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Indent: Left: 0", Space
4 <$30,000 $30,001 — $41,400 $41,401 — $45,000 $45,001 - $52,500 $52,501—$60,000 2$60,001 Before: 5.9 pt, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No
border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between :
5 S B et B e e B e e 2$70,284
\ (No border)
< $40,281 — $55,586 $55,587 — $60,420 $60,421 — $70,490 $70,491—$80,560 2! : ot O
6 £$40,280 v v v v v v v v 2$80,561 Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Indent: Left: 0", Space
7 £$45,420 $45.421—$62,680 $62,681—$68,430 $68,430—$79.485 $79,486—$90.840 >$90.844 Before: 5.9 pt, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No
. border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between :
8 <£$50,560 $50,561—$69,773 $69,774—$75,840 $75,841—$88,480 $88,481 —$101,120 | 2$101,124 (No border)
9 <£$55,700 $55,701 — $76,866 $76,866 — $83,550 $83,551 — $97,475 $97,476 —$111,400 | 2$111.404 Formatted [_j
10 £$60,840 | $60,841—$83,959 | $83,959—$91,260 | $91,261—$106,470 $106,471—$121,680 | 2$121,681 Formatted Q
Formatted
Formatted [_j
12 <$71,120 s B e e e B e $424,461—$142;240 | 2$142,241
Formatted [_j
< $76,261 — $105,239 | $105,240 — $114,390 | $114,391— $133,455 $133,456—$152;520 | 2!
B £$76,260 ; ; g ; g g g 5 2$152,521 Formatted B
14 <$81;400 $81,401—$412,332 | $412,333 —$122,100 | $122,101—$142,450 $142,451—$162,800 | 2$162,804 Formatted ﬁ
Fee/Discount* | $20 75%discount 65%discount 55%discount 45%discount NO-DISCOUNT Formatted ﬁ
Formatted ﬁ
N s
*Par visit Formatted [_j




* Formatted: Heading 4, Space Before: 5.9 pt

Formatted: Heading 4, Space Before: 5.9 pt, Border:

Top: (No border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No

border), Right: (No border), Between : (No border)

"__[ Formatted:

Heading 4, Left, Space Before:

5.9 pt

"__[ Formatted:

Heading 4, Left, Space Before:

5.9 pt

"__( Formatted:

Heading 4, Left, Space Before:

5.9 pt

[~ | Formatted:

Heading 4, Left, Space Before:

5.9 pt

I Formatted:

Heading 4, Left, Space Before:

5.9 pt

"__[ Formatted:

Heading 4, Left, Space Before:

5.9 pt

"__( Formatted:

Heading 4, Left, Space Before:

5.9 pt

[ | Formatted:

Heading 4, Left, Space Before:

5.9 pt

"__[ Formatted:

Heading 4, Left, Space Before:

5.9 pt

"__[ Formatted:

Heading 4, Left, Space Before:

5.9 pt

[~ | Formatted:

Heading 4, Left, Space Before:

5.9 pt

‘—( Formatted:

Heading 4, Left, Space Before:

5.9 pt

Neominal
amily >100%-and
- ‘; ggo( _g1 3804 ;38_9‘ and;;goé ;590‘ a“d ;;506 ;;50‘ and 2090‘ m
2 $20,440 $20,441-$28,207 | $28,208-$30,660 $30,661-$35,770 $35,771-$40,880 fao0.001
4 $21200 £24.201 42,055 $42,057 ¢48.800 £46,001 €EAE00 £54,601 £63 100 £52,001
6 $41,960 $41,961-57,904 $57,905-$62,940 $62,941-$73,430 $73,431-$83,920 $83,921
8 $E2720 SEL 7 72052 $77Ee¢70.000 $£70.000€02.350 £02,260-£405.440 SEOE4AL
9 geot00 gEodon cooage fonazo comaEn So7 ALl canncTE S0 ETE COIE 000 | SOLE 00
$111,091-
10 $63,480 $68,481-$87,602 | $87,603-$95,220 $95,221-$111.090 $126,960 $125,061
$120,506-
$102,542 - $129,921 -
13 $79,620 $79,621-$109,875 | $109,876— $119,431-$139,335 $139,336- $159,241

"__[ Formatted:

Heading 4, Left, Space Before:

5.9 pt

"__( Formatted:

Heading 4, Left, Space Before:

5.9 pt




Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Space Before: 5.9 pt ]

Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Space Before: 5.9 pt ]

Formatted: Heading 4, Space Before: 5.9 pt

$119,430 $159,240
S0 SLA0TEI—
Fee/Discount NO
x 100% 75% 65% 55% 25% DISCOUNT
*Per test/service
f:ﬂ P L

Formatted: Heading 4, Space Before: 5.9 pt, Border:
Top: (No border), Bottom: (No border), Left: (No
border), Right: (No border), Between : (No border)

S\

Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Indent: Left: 0", Space
Before: 5.9 pt, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No
border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between :
(No border)

Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Indent: Left: 0", Space
Before: 5.9 pt, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No
border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between :
(No border)

Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Indent: Left: 0", Space

Before: 5.9 pt, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No
Persons | Nominal TierA TierB TierC TierD Full Price border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between :
in-Family| Fee (No border)
<100% >100%-and-<138% | >138% and-<150% >150% and-<175% >175% and-<200% >200% Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Indent: Left: 0", Space
| Before: 5.9 pt, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No
J fi p d p: bord
1 $15,060 $15,061-$20,782 $20,783-$22,590 $22,591-$26,355 $26,356-$30,120 $30,121 border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between :
2 (No border)
- - - - - - - - - - Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Indent: Left: 0", Space
3 £25,220 $25.02C2E e $25,522-¢20.720 ] $4EA06CELEAD 450k Before: 5.9 pt, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No
border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between :
4 $31,200 | $31,201-$43.056 | $43,057-$46,800 $46,801-$54,600 $54,601-$62,400 $62,401 sl bo)rder) ( ). Right: ( )
5 $36,580 $36,581-$50,480 $50,481--$54,870 $54,871-564,015 $64,016-$73,160 $73,161 / Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Indent: Left: 0", Space
Before: 5.9 pt, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No
6 $41,960 $41,961-57,904 $57,905-$62,940 $62,941-$73,430 $73,431-$83,920 $83,921
border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between :
7 $47,340 $47,341-$65,329 $65,330-$71.010 $71,011-$82,845 $82,846-$94,680 $94,681 (No border)
8 $52,720 | $52.721-$72.753  §72.753-$79,080 $79,081-$92.260 $92,260-$105440 | $105441 ‘\f Formatted CJ
‘\( Formatted
9 $58,100 $58,101-$80,178 $80,179-$87,150 $87,151-$101,675 $101,676-$116,200 $116,201 [_j
Formatted [_j
$68,481-$87,602 $87,603-$95,220 $95,221 -$111,090 $111,091-$126,960
10 £62:420 7 5 y y y 7 7 7 $126,961 4\( Formatted [_j




s $68,860 $68,861-£95,026 $95,027-£103,290 $103,291-$120,505 $120,506-$137%,720 | $13%,721
b $74;240 $74,241-6102,541 | $102,542-$111,360 | $111,361-$129,920 $129,921-9148,480 | $148,481
3 $79,620 $79,621-9109,875 | $109,876-$119,430 | $119,431-£139,335 $139,336-$159,240 | $159,241
1 $85,000 $85,001-9117,300 | $117,301-$127,500 | $127,501-$148,750 $148,751-$170,000 | $170,001
Feer $20 $25 $35 $45 $55 NO-DISCOUNT

2024 Schedule of Sliding Fee Discounts Based on Income and Family Size
for Preventive Dental Care

TBD

Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Indent: Left: 0", Right: 0",
Space Before: 5.9 pt, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom:
(No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border),
Between : (No border)

Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Indent: Left: 0", Right: 0",
Space Before: 5.9 pt, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom:
(No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border),
Between : (No border)

Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Indent: Left: 0", Right: 0",
Space Before: 5.9 pt, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom:
(No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border),

\\ Between : (No border)

Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Indent: Left: 0", Right: 0",
Space Before: 5.9 pt, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom:
(No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border),

\| Between : (No border)

Formatted: Heading 4, Left, Indent: Left: 0", Right: 0",
Space Before: 5.9 pt, Border: Top: (No border), Bottom:
(No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border),
Between : (No border)




ENTO
NTY

Sacrame

Sacramento County Health Center

2024 Schedule of Sliding Fee Discounts Based on Income and Family Size for Diagnostic
Laboratory Services (through Quest Diagnostics)

Persons Tier A Tier B Tier C Tier D Full Price
in Family | <100%’ >100% to <133%! >133% to <167%! >167% to $200%" >200%
1 <$14,580 $14,581.00 -$19,391.40 | $19,391.41-$24,348.60 $24,348.61-$29,160.00 $29,161
2 819,720 | $19,721.00- $26.227.60 | $26,227.61-$32,932.40 $32,932.41-839,440.00 $39.441
8 <$24,.860 | $74,861.00 - $33,063.80 | $33,063.81-$41,516.20 $41,516.21-849,720.00 $49,721
4 830,000 | $30,001.00 - $39,900.00 | $39,901.00-§50,100.00 $50,100.01-860,000.00 $60,001
5 835,140 | $35141.00 - $46,736.20 | $46,736.21-$58,683.80 $58,683.81-$70,280.00 $70,281
6 840,280 | $40,281.00 - $53,572.40 | $53,572.41-867,267.60 $67,267.61-880,560.00 $80,561
7 <$45420 | $45421.00 - $60,408.60 | $60,408.61-$75,851.40 $75,851.41-$90,840.00 $90,841
8 850560 | $50,561.00 - $67,244.80 | $67,244.81-$84,43520 | $84,435.21-$101,120.00 | $101,121
9 855,700 | ¢55701.00 - $74,081.00 | $74,081.01-$93,019.00 $93,019.01-$111,400.00 $111,401
10 <$60,840 | $60,841.00 - $80,917.20 | $80,917.21-$101,602.80 | $101,602.81-§121,680.00 | $121,681
" =$65980 | $65,981.00 - $87,753.40 | $87,753.41-$110,186.60 | $110,186.61-$131,960.00 | $131,961
12 <$71,120 | $71,121.00 - $94,589.60 | $94,589.61-$118,770.40 | $118,770.41-$142,240.00 | $142,241
13 =$76.260 | $76,261.00 - $101,425.80 | $101,425.81-$127,354.20 | $127,354.21-8152,520.00 | $152,521
14 <$81,400 | $81,401.00 - $108,262.00 | $108,262.01-$135,938.00 | $135,938.01-$162,800.00 | $162,801
Discount*|  100% 75% 50% 25% DISCOUNT
*Per test/service

"Percentage of Federal Poverty Level



SACRAMENTO
> COUNTY

2024 Schedule of Sliding Fee Discounts Based on Income and Family Size

Sacramento County Health Center

for All Other In-Scope SCHC Services (per visit)

Persons | Nominal Tier A Tier B Tier C Tier D Full Price
in Family ~460%7 | >100% and <138%' | >138% and <150%' | >150% and <175%' | >175% and S200%' | >200%'
1 $15,060 | $15,060.01-$20,782.80 $20,782.81 — $22,590 $22,590.01- $26,355 $26,355.01-$30,120 2$30,120.01
2 $20,440 | $20,440.01-$28,207.20 $28,207.21 — $30,660 $30,660.01- $35,770 $35,770.01-$40,880 >$40,880.01
3 $25,820 | $25,820.01-$35,631.60 $35,631.61— $38,730 $38,730.01— $45,185 $45,185.01-$51,640 >$51,640.01
4 $31,200 $31,200.01-$43,056.00 $43,056.01— $46,800 $46,800.01— $54,600 $54,600.01-$62,400 2$62,400.01
5 $36,580 $36,580.01-$50,480.40 $50,480.41— $54,870. $54,870.01—- $64,015 $64,015.01-$73,160 >$73,160.01
6 $41,960 | $41,960.01-$57,904.80 $57,904.81 — $62,940 $62,940.01- $73,430 $73,430.01-$83,920 2$83,920.01
7 $47,340 | $47,340.01- $65,329.20 $65,329.21- $71,010 $71,010.01- $82,845 $82,845.01-$94,680 >$94,680.01
8 $52,720 | $52,720.01- $72,753.60 $72,753.61— $79,080 $79,080.01—$92,260 | $92,260.01-$105,440 | =$105,440.01
9 $58,100 $58,100.01-$80,178.00 $80,178.01— $87,150 $87,150.01— $101,675 | $101,675.01-$116,200 | =2$116,200.01
10 $63,480 $63,480.01-$87,602.40 $87,602.41— $95,220 $95,220.01—$111,090 | $111,090.01-$126,960 | 2$126,960.01
1 $68,860 | $68,860.01-$95,026.80 $95,026.81- $103,290 $103,290.01- $120,505| $120,505.01-$137,720 | 2$137,720.01
12 $74,240 | $74,240.01-$102,451.20 | $102,451.21—-$111,360 | $111,360.01— $129,920( $129,920.01-$148,480 | 2$148,480.01
13 $79,620 | $79,620.01 —-$109,875.60 | $109,875.61— $119,430 | $119,430.01— $139,335| $139,335.01-$159,240 | 2$159,240.01
14 $85,000 | $85,000.01-$117,300.00 | $117,300.01—$127,500 | $127,500.01—- $148,750| $148,750.01-$170,000 | 2$170,000.01
Fee* $20 $25 $35 $45 $55 DISCOUNT

*Per visit charge

"Percentage of Federal Poverty Level

P vick



AC RAM ENTO Sacramento County Health Center

COUNTY

Attachment B: SCHC Scope of Services

HRSA Required Services
General primary medical care
Diagnostic laboratory services (NOTE: SEPARATE SLIDING FEE SCHEDULE)
Diagnostic radiology
Screenings
Coverage for emergencies during and after hours
Voluntary family planning
Immunizations
Well child services
Gynecological care
Obstetrical Care
Prenatal care
Intrapartum care (labor and delivery)
Postpartum care
Preventive dental services (NOTE: SEPARATE SLIDING FEE SCHEDULE)
Pharmaceutical services
Substance Use Disorder services
Case management
Eligibility assistance
Health education
Outreach
Transportation
Translation

HRSA Additional Services
Mental health services

SCHC Additional Services
Cardiology
Neurology




Appendix C
Sacramento County Health Center Sliding Fee Information Sheet

The health center wants to ensure that all patients get the care they need as quickly as possible. To assist patients
who cannot get insurance or other coverage, there is a sliding fee schedule that you may qualify for to reduce the
cost of the care you receive here. The following guidelines apply:

® Thessliding fee program is based on income and family size.

o Complete the application and re-apply every year or earlier if your income changes.

® You are required to provide documents in order to assess your discount. See below and application for
more information.

SCHC offers a sliding fee discount that covers preventive dental services received at SCHC
or at the Sacramento Native American Health Center. In partnership with Quest, SCHC
offers a sliding fee discount that covers diagnostic laboratory services provided by Quest.
Finally, SCHC offers a sliding fee discount that covers primary care office visits with the
County Health Center providers, visits with cardiology and neurology providers at SCHC's

main cite an Rroadwav and nreccrintianc fillad at the Cannty Pharmacv lacated at 4600

Begin the process by applying for Medi-Cal and other available health coverage programs. If you have already done
this, please include a copy of your card with other required materials. If you are told you do not qualify, or only
qualify for partial services, bring your letter to us with other required materials.

Materials to Bring
1. Sliding Fee Application: completed

Identification: California Driver License, State of California Identification Card, or Passport

2
3. Letter from Medi-Cal or Medi-Care: indicating eligibility for public benefits.
4

Proof of Income: most recent pay check stub dated within 60 days of application OR most recent income
tax return. Include documentation of any other income such as pension, retirement, social security,
public assistance, workers compensation, unemployment, alimony, etc.

5. Proof of Family Size: means a statement of the household living under one roof including spouse,
children, and dependent adults. (Birth or Marriage certificates may be requested)

6. Proof of Residence: a utility bill or rental agreement with your name and a local county address

Application Process
® Bring documents to Suite 2200 at the County Health Center. Staff will review your materials and let you
know about your eligibility and fees for services.

e |[f eligible, your coverage is for a one-year period. You must re-apply immediately if you have a change in
income, family size, or residency.

Frequently Asked Questions

Q: Can | obtain the sliding discount if | do not provide the information requested?
A: No. This is a voluntary program. You will be responsible for full charges.

Q: How often do | need to apply?
A: Every year, OR you must reapply immediately if you have a change in income, residency, or family size.

Q: Who is considered a member of the household residence?



Sacramento County Health Center
Sliding Fee Information Sheet

The health center wants to ensure that all patients get the care they need as quickly as possible. To assist
patients who cannot get insurance or other coverage or have a large share of cost or co-pay, we have a
sliding fee discount program that you may qualify for to reduce the cost of the care you receive here. The
following guidelines apply:

e The sliding fee program is based on income and family size.

o Complete the application and re-apply every year or earlier if your income changes.

® You are required to provide documents in order to assess your discount. See below and application for

more information.

SCHC offers a sliding fee discount that covers preventive dental services received at SCHC
or at the Sacramento Native American Health Center. In partnership with Quest, SCHC
offers a sliding fee discount that covers diagnostic laboratory services provided by Quest.
Finally, SCHC offers a sliding fee discount that covers primary care office visits with the
County Health Center providers, visits with cardiology providers at SCHC’s main site
on Broadway, and prescriptions filled at the County Pharmacy located at 4600 Broadway.

We recommend that you begin the process by applying for Medi-Cal and other available health coverage programs.
If you have already done this, please include a copy of your card with other required materials. If you are told
you do not qualify, or only qualify for partial services, bring your letter to us with other required materials.

Materials to Bring
1. Sliding Fee Application: completed (Recommended: completed Quest financial assistance form)

Identification: California Driver License, State of California Identification Card, or Passport

2
3. Letter from Medi-Cal or Medi-Care: indicating eligibility for public benefits.
4

Proof of Income: most recent pay check stub dated within 60 days of application OR most recent income
tax return. Include documentation of any other income such as pension, retirement, social security, public
assistance, workers compensation, unemployment, alimony, etc.

5. Proof of Family Size: means a statement of the household living under one roof including spouse, children,
and dependent adults. (Birth or Marriage certificates may be requested)

6. Proof of Residence: a utility bill or rental agreement with your name and ‘a local county address|

Application Process
® Bring documents to Suite 2200 at the County Health Center. Staff will review your materials and let you
know about your eligibility and fees for services.
e If eligible, your coverage is for a one-year period. You must re-apply immediately if you have a change in
income, family size, or residency.

Frequently Asked Questions

Q: Can | obtain the sliding discount if | do not provide the information requested?
A: No. This is a voluntary program. You will be responsible for full charges.

Q: How often do | need to apply?
A: Every year, OR you must reapply immediately if you have a change in income, residency, or family size.

Q: Who is considered a member of the household residence/family?

~| Commented [3]: above when discussing residency, it

mentions living within Sacramento County. But this
talks about a local county address. So these need to be
the same language?

Commented [SH4R3]: How is that different?




ACRAMENTO

co SACRAMENTO

SLIDING FEE SCALE APPLICATION

Patient Information Today’s Date: / /

First Name: | Middle: ’ Other names:

Home Address: City: State: Zip:

Mailing Address: City: State: Zip:

Home Phone #: Mobile Phone #:

Date of Birth: | Social Security #: Do you have Health Insurance?

Marital Status: ‘ Single  In a relationship Married  Divorced  Separated Widowed

Family Size

Name Date of Birth Social Security Number

Family Income

Name Amount Frequency (circle one): Employer:

You $ Weekly  Monthly  Yearly

Partner $ Weekly  Monthly  Yearly

Child $ Weekly  Monthly  Yearly

Child $ Weekly  Monthly  Yearly

Other $ Weekly  Monthly  Yearly

Total $ Weekly  Monthly  Yearly

Other Income

Other Income You: Spouse/Partner | Child Child Other Subtotal

Social Security

Retirement Pension

Child Support

Alimony

Other

Total $




A A N
SACRAMENTO SACRAMENTO COUNTY

Section to be completed by Applicant:

The date the application is submitted will be the date any eligible discounts will apply to your
services. In the event an application is submitted without the required documentation, you will be
notified and given 14 days from notification to submit the documentation without moving the
submission date forward. If you do not submit the required documentation within the required 14-
day time period, the application will be denied and you will be required to re-submit the application.

Please attach at least one item from each applicable section on the previous page to
complete your application. Incomplete applications will not be considered for discount

| do hereby swear or affirm that the information provided on this application is true and correct to the
best of my knowledge and belief. | agree that any misleading or falsified information, and/or
omissions may disqualify me from further consideration for the [sliding fee program\ and will subject

me to penalties under Federal Laws, which may include fines and imprisonment. | further agree to
inform Sacramento County Health Center if there is a significant change in my income within thirty
(30) days. If acceptance to the sliding fee program is obtained under this application, | will comply
with all rules and regulations of Innovative Health Care. | understand that the information | have
provided is subject to verification by Sacramento County Health Center. | hereby acknowledge that |
read the foregoing disclosure and understand it.

| will be billed for the sliding fee payment.

‘Name

Signature Date

_—| Commented [5]: should this read Sliding Fee Discount

Program?

Commented [SH6R5]: Good question! | have no idea
what Innovative Health Care is!

|
|




Diagnostics™

@ ) Quest

Dear Patient,

Thank you for your interest in our Patient Financial Assistance Program. So that we can determine
your eligibility, please complete the attached application form and return it to the correspondence
address listed on your invoice, along with one or more of the required documents listed below:

A copy of last year's W2 form

A copy of your most recent pay stub (s)

L ]
e A copy of last year’s income tax return
[ ]
L ]

V-\ proof source indicating\ that you are eligible for local, state, or federal assistance programs.

{ Commented [7]: should this read official

N documentation
Once we receive your completed application and documentation, we will determine if you meet Commented [SH8RT7]: It's Quest's form, so | don't
the established criteria. Please allow approximately two weeks for your application to be processed. il v e el fi . ’

Do not make any payments until you receive notification regarding the status of your request.
Applying for acceptance into our Financial Assistance Program does not guarantee reduced charges.

If you have any additional questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact us.
Thank you for using Quest Diagnostics. We look forward to serving you in the future.

Sincerely,

Patient Billing Customer Service



@ ) Quest

Diagnostics®
Patient Financial Assistance Form

Patient Name: Telephone Number:
Address: Patient Date of Birth:
City: State: Zip Code:
Invoice Number(s): Lab Code:

Please complete all information accurately. The signature of the patient or patient’s guardian is required.

Please make sure to attach the required supporting documentation.
1. Does the patient have sufficient resources to pay for the testing and/or the deductible and coinsurance?

O Yes Ifansweris “Yes”, you are financially responsible for payment.
O No If answer is “No”, complete form below.

2. Is any source, other than the patient, legally responsible for the patient’s medical
bills (e.g., Medicaid, local welfare agency, guardian or other insurance program)?
O Yes O No If answer is “Yes” list:

Insurance Company Name:
Address:

Member I.D.:

Other Source:

3. Patient/legal guardian’s monthly household resources:

Salary $
Social Security $
Cash/Welfare Payment $
Family Contribution $
Income from Savings Accounts, CDs, etc. $

Other

Total $

4. Number of family members in household:

I hereby acknowledge that the above information is true and correct according to the best of my
knowledge. | also authorize the release of any and all financial records necessary to verify the above
information. | understand that if | do not qualify, | will be notified and Quest Diagnostics will bill me. |
hereby acknowledge that | am neither related to nor employed by the physician who ordered the testing.

Patient Name (Print): Guardian
Name (Print): Responsible Party Signature
Date:

For Official Use Only:
Bill Number Amount $ Approved Denied

Date Received:
PCS Rep:

09/2019



ACRAMENTO

cC O

Section to be completed by Primary Health Center Staff:
Patient Name: DOB:

SACRAMENTO COUNTY HEALTH CENTER

Verification Checklist
Attach copies of each item checked below

*Identification/Address (Submit one of the following):
* Driver’s license, or
* Birth certificate, or
* Social Security Card, or
* Other:

*Income (Submit one of the following):
* Prior year tax return (required if self-employed), or
» Single most recent pay stub, or
* W-2 or 1099, Form 4506-T], or

* Other:

Insurance (if applicable):
* Insurance card(s)

Medi-Cal (if applicable):

* Medi-Cal card or evidence of rejection
You may be eligible for Medicaid benefits. Please let our office staff
know and we may be able to help you with this process.

O O O

Medicare (if applicable):
* Medicare card

be ﬁha%lggt is eligible for -sliding fee discount |n_7gler.

Proof of income_verified or Attestation of no income

Client is not eligible for Sliding Fee Discount Program based on income verification provided.

verified-Verification completed by (print):

Signature Date

Commented [9]: | think this is the form you file to
request a copy of old tax returns. I'm not aware of how
it proves income.




S@AM E N I(Y) Sacramento County Health Center

COUN

Attestation of No Income

I hereby attest that I am not employed and do not have other income (such
as alimony, prices and awards, gambling winnings including from the lottery,
jury duty pay, capital gains from stock or property sales, nonbusiness credit
card debt cancellation).

FIRST NAME MIDDLE INITIAL _ LAST NAME

SIGNATURE DATE

“ ’{ Formatted: Indent: First line: 0.04"




AC RAM E NTO Sacramento County Health Center

~— COUNTY

Attestation of Sacramento County Residence

I hereby attest that I live in Sacramento County but am unhoused and do
not have proof of my residence in Sacramento County.

FIRST NAME MIDDLE INITIAL LAST NAME

SIGNATURE DATE




County of Sacramento
Department of Health Services
Division of Primary Health Services
Policy and Procedure

Policy Issuer
(Unit/Program)

Clinic Services

Policy Number 04-25
Effective Date 03-15-24
Revision Date 02-20-24

Title: Request to Change Provider

Functional Area: Clinic Operations

Approved By: Susmita Mishra, MD, Medical Director

Policy

Sacramento County Health Center (SCHC) is dedicated to providing high quality patient care.

When a patient is interested in changing providers for any reason, SCHC will accommodate the

request when possible, to ensure optimal patient care and satisfaction. The California Department
of Health Services grants Medi-Cal patients the right to chose their medical-Health Pplan, and
then a doctor or clinic (including a health center) that participatesd with that medical-Health Pplan.
Research (Forrest et al., 2002) has shown that patient choice of PCP can improve satisfaction

with the care received. Pln-addition;-patient choice of PCP is a basic principle of patient-centered

care.

Procedures

A. Distribution of Form

1. Copies of the Request to Change Primary Care Provider will be provided at the

[ Formatted: Font: Not Italic, No underline

registration desk in each clinical program.

2. Medical aAssistants will also have copies of the form to provide to patients upon

request and direct them to turn in the completed form to the registration desk (check-

in window).

3. Registration staff will review the completed form to ensure that it is legible and fully

filled out and then place it in the basket.

B. Routing of Form

BC.

1. The HPM over each clinical program will designate a Sr. Office Assistant (SOA) to
collect all Request to Change Primary Care Provider forms at least once per week.

2. The SOA will sort the forms and separate the requests related to attending
providers from those related to resident providers.

3. The SOA will deliver the forms to the Program Leads each week-afterthey-are-

collected.
Jo M

Decision

1. Decisions will be made within 14 calendar days of receiving the requests from the

SOA/HPM.

2. All requests to change away from or to a resident provider will go to the UCD
Program Lead for approval to ensure that their panels meet residency

requirements. The UCD Program Lead will make-a-decidesion whether the request

can be honored. If requests cross programs, the Leads will confer with the other

Program Lead on ard-make-a decision.
03-04-1

B ﬂ Formatted: Left

“~ | Formatted: Left, Indent: Left: 1.01", No bullets or
numbering

“B ﬂ Formatted: Left



file://ADMNS1/Workgrps/Primary-Health/Admin-Services/Policies%20and%20Procedures/Forms/Posted%20Forms/Request%20to%20Change%20Primary%20Care%20Provider.docx

3-a. The HPM of the clinical program will review requests related to attending
providers and sort them into clinical (e.g., doctor does not listen or respect
me; want a provider who knows about depression) and non-clinical reasons
(language, gender, want to see a provider | know or can see more often).

&b. The HPM will send the requests due to clinical reasons to the SCHC Medical
Director.

i-c. The Medical Director will consult with the provider(s) involved and make-
adecide-decision whether-if to-honeor the request_can be honored.

iikd. The HPM will review the non-clinical requests and make-a-decision-
whetherdecide if the request can be honored.

4.3. The HPMs, Medical Director, and Program Leads will consult at least annually to

ED.

1.

EE.
1.

2.

ensure that they are applying the same criteria.
Panel Change

The Medical Director and HPMs will send approved requests to the designated
SOA to make the change in OCHIN.

Follow up with Patient

For approved requests, the designated SOA will call let-the patient to let them know

the decision before the end of the 30-day period. Document the phone encounter.
For denied requests, the HPM will arrange-to-contactcall the patient to let them

know the decision and the reason before the end of the 30-day period. Document

the phone encounter.

F. Record Keeping

1.

Request to change provider fEorms will be sent to the DHS PRI PHS-COMPLIANCE

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left: 1.13", Right: 0.19", Space
Before: 6.1 pt, Numbered + Level: 1T + Numbering
Style: a, b, ¢, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned
at: 0.73" + Indent at: 0.98", Tab stops: Not at 1.01"

fax/email box to record in case of audit or grievance.

The HPM for Compliance will summarize the request reasons and providers involved

:References:
CB Forrest, L

270-277.
Request to Change Primary Care Provider

for review by Management Team at least twice a year so that patterns can be
reviewed and addressed as needed.

Shi, S von Schrader & j Ng (April 17, 2002). Managed care, primary care,
and the patient-practitioner relationship. Journal of General Internal medicine, 17(4):

Contact:

. . _RN.S ising Reai
Rebin-Skalsky-Health Program Manager for Operations

03-04-2


file://ADMNS1/Workgrps/Primary-Health/Admin-Services/Policies%20and%20Procedures/Forms/Posted%20Forms/Request%20to%20Change%20Primary%20Care%20Provider.docx

Co-Applicant Board Approval:, /[ Formatted: Font color: Red

03-04-3



Policy Issued OrganizationClinic
County of Sacramento 'g%r;iglpmgr;?;zz Services
Department of Health Services 4 02-05

Division of Primary Health Services Effective Date 11-06-20

Policy and Procedure Revision Date 11-28-23032-
0125-24

Title: Variance-Reperting—Reporting and Investigation Functional Area: Clinic
of Complaiiants and  Grievances ServicesMember Services

Approved By: Susmita-Mishra,-MB,-Medical DirectorAndrew Mendonsa, Psy.D., Division
Manager/HRSA Project Director

Policy

When Sacramento County Health CenteSr (SCHC) Patient-variancesRreceives a reports of a
problems with services-te-patients, including direct complaints from a patient, (or guardian-er,
care taker, or family member) as-well-asand grievances sent by an Independent Provider
Association (IPA) or health plan, such reports will-which-include-complaints-and-formal
grievaneceswill-beare -collected -investigated, discussed, resolved, and tracked to ensure
patients receive quality and timely care in a respectful and culturally competent manner.
Varianees-Complaints and grievances will be categorized according to their nature and possible
consequences into three levels.

Cateqgory | Description Examples

Level | Access challenges Complaints about call center wait times;
difficulty making an appointment,
physical access, communication issues.

Level ll Delay in care, disrespectful Delayed prescription refills; patient billed
behavior, -or failure to follow in error; unprofessional or disrespectful
clinical, operational, or fiscal P&P treatment of patients

Level lll Issues impacting patient safety, or Medication error; needle stick/exposure;
violating privacy or security laws, or | severe allergic reaction; HIPAA breach;
involving possible litigation severe bodily harm

All varianee-suchrepertscomplaints and grievances will be reported, investigated, and
addressed will-be-completed-in a timely fashion, with the-following-guidelinesspecific timelines
outlined inthe-Procedures-section-below, depending on the type of and implications of the
compliantcomplaint or grievance. The Health Program Manager (HPM) for Quality and
Compliance will present a summary of patterns and trends in complaints and grievances to the
Management Team and the Co-Applicant Board at least semi-semi-annually.

03-05-1



Procedures:

A. Complaints directly from patients, -(er-patient guardian, care-taker, or family member,

(aka-‘representative”)}

1.

Receipt of Complaint

Any staff member who receives a complaint from-a-patient{orpatient-guardian-or

family-member—aka“representative}-listens to the patient {or representative-er

guardian) and follows these steps:-detailed-below-:

a. Stops other activities to listen to the complainant.Attends-to-the-issue

b. Thankss the individual(s) for bringing the issue to him/her and tells the
complairantperson that the complaint is important..se-the-staff memberwill-take
notes;

Listens to the details of the complaint and; takesing notes.;

d. Validates emotions of the individual (e.qg., “that must be frustrating”).;
b-e. Suggests the patient {errepresentativelor representative complete the

Clinic Service Comment Form.-aka-Clinie Service-Comment-Form; | Formatted: No underline

f. If the patient {orrepresentative)or representative agrees to complete the Clinic
Service Comment Form, staff: Complaint-Form;

i. GStaffgives patient {orrepresentativejor representative the Clinic
Service Comment Form-Cemplaint-Form:; and

ii. RStaffreads the Clinic Service Comment Form CemplaintForm-after
the patient {orrepresentative)or representative is done.

e—If the patient (orrepresentative)or representative does not want to complete the
Clinic Service Comment FormGemplaint-Form, the staff member explains that
s/he will complete it as accuratelybest as possible from the verbal description

and send it to the supervisor.Listens-to-the-details-of the-complaint;

u. I
7

03-05-2


file://ADMNS1/Workgrps/Primary-Health/Admin-Services/Policies%20and%20Procedures/Forms/Posted%20Forms/Clinic%20Service%20Comment%20Form.docx

i——Confirms and states back what the staff member understands to be the
complaint.;
[
b—Verbally sets expectations of issue resolution_by stating a-{ manager will
contact patient with a proposed resolution within fwefour business

days.stepstime—closing-the-loop)

e—Assesses patient for understanding_ and reports any communication
barriers to the manager.

.
d—Thank the individual(s) again-and indicates that willsend-the Clinic

Service Comment FormGomplaint/Eorm will be sent to the supervisor C ted [A1]: still called Clinic Service Comment Form -
loday fhenecvofronthephone): changelit?,

iv.

v. Writes the information down_on a Clinic Service Comment
Form.Cemplaint-Form:

vi. Sends the Clinic Service Comment Form CemplaintForm-along-with-a
completed-Incident Report Form-it-to their supervisor on the same day

of receipt.

If the staff person taking the complaint works in the Call Center, they will place

themselves in X‘busy after call work” status while completing the Clinic Service C ted [A2]: Kim or Sandra, what is the name of this
Comment FormGemalamt— aﬂd—#—needed—me%edent—RepeFtnd—hqerdem—Reeeﬁ et efgEllie? (ol i e (el e ned el wilb e e
E An | tR £ I finishing documenting?

2. Supervisor Review of Complaint

a. The supervisor reviews the information and initially classifies the complaint by
Level.

b. Then-the supervisor either accepts responsibility for the investigation or informs
the supervisor of the area most implicated in the complaint and sends them the
Clinic Service Comment Form CemplaintFerm-and, if neededcompleted, the
Incident Report.

c. TThis person becomes the Supervisor in Charge (SIC).

03-05-3



4-3. Investigation_of Complaint
The S|Cupervisorin-Charge investigates the complaint, following these steps:
a. Ferlevel lll Ceomplaints;

—Conducts an aceelerated-investigation, interviewing as many witnesses
as possible and the complainant {if possible,} within 24 business
hours.=;

#—Completes the Supervisor Report of Complaint and sends it, with the /{Formatted: No underline

original-Cempliant Clinic Service Comment Form CemplaintFerm-to the

DHS PRI PHS-COMPLIANCE email box.Cemplaints emailboxland —{ commented [A3]: Also within 24 hours?

(See Section 4 below for details) Formatted: No underline

——If more than 24 business hours is needed to complete the investigation,

ii—Ccontinues to investigate and sends an amended Supervisor Report of
Complaint if needed.Supervisor-Report-of

b. Ferlevel | and Il Ceomplaints;
i. Conducts an investigation, interviewing- all witnesses and the

complainant within 48 business hours2-days.

ii. If an outside department’s input is needed, contacts them to assist.

iii. Double-check basic facts of the complaint (e.g., time of appointment
and time checked in; Rx history) and record as much detail about the
incident as possible.

iv. Completes the Supervisor Report of Complaint and sends it, with the ~{ Formatted: No underline

original Clinic Service Comment Form to the DHS PRI PHS-
COMPLIANCE email box within 72 business hours. (See Section 4

below).



file://ADMNS1/Workgrps/Primary-Health/Admin-Services/Policies%20and%20Procedures/Forms/Posted%20Forms/Supervisor%20Report%20of%20Complaint.docx
mailto:dhspriphs-compliance@saccounty.gov
file://ADMNS1/Workgrps/Primary-Health/Admin-Services/Policies%20and%20Procedures/Forms/Posted%20Forms/Supervisor%20Report%20of%20Complaint.docx

5.4. Documentation_of Complaint

The Superviser-in-ChargeSIC documents the details of the complaint, filling in the
Varianee-RepertSupervisor Report of Complaint, following these steps-eutlined
below-;:

&

ba. ~ Incident reports are not part of or attached to the patient’s or
complainant’s medical record.

e-b.As a medical best practice, any facts pertaining to the patients“health and well-
being of the patient involved in the incident should be added irn to the patient’s
medical record.

e-c.Fills in all requisite fields, including date of incident, persons involved,type-of
incident; etc.;

ed. Summarizes findings_of the investigation-in-variance-form, writing
usingir succinct, clear, and objective language.—;

f.e. Writes in a third person narrative (do not use "I"), using the full names and titles
of all persons included.=;

g-f. Presents the issue in chronological order from when the incident occurred; and
includes all subsequent action.-;

h-q. Answers the who, what, when, where; (and possibly why) of what
occurred.-;
&h. Includes an accurate description of supervisor's own role-.;

i. Proofreads the report for accurate facts, grammatical mistakes, understanding
and comprehensiveness;-and-understanding;.

a)—Emails the Supervisor Report of Complaint and the original Complaint Form
filed-outby staffto DHS PRI PHS-COMPLIANCE the-Complaints-email-box
within 72 business hours of the complaint.--and

“m= 4[ Formatted: Right

-
k. If the |nC|dent relates to health of patient documents the relevant information

in the patient’s chart
gnderusing a telephone encounter message.;

03-05-5

”W

Commented [A4]: Is this the same form that was sent at 24 or
48 hours? s it called something else? An Amendment or follow up
report?




8.5. Repert-SubmissienTracking of and Evaluation of Complaint

a. The Variance-CoordinatorSenior Office Assistant for Quality and Compliance

(SOA-Q&QC):

——a)-Rreviews the email and attachments to ensure they are complete.:

a—b)Hthe the SOA-Q&C Cealls the Supervisor in Charge to ask for a
prompt completion of the-any missing -information.-missing—fThe SOA-

Q&G; and

iii.  Assesses the complaint level assigned, {consulting with the HPM for
Quality and Compliance if needed,) and re-assigns itthe level if needed.

b.

The Variance-Goordinater-HPM for Quality and Compliance then-sends-makes the

final report of the investigation available to the correct- parties, as detailed

below.

i. Levellll
a. Upload to shared drive: W:\Primary-Health\Clinic-
Services\Compliance\Variances\Complaints\[YEAR].

Sends email, attaching final report, to all members of the Health and

Safety Committee.

¥__Marks as High Priority
v__Subject: "Level lll_complaint_[Date received]"

03-05-6



b. Emails the SOA-Q&C to complete the Complaint Tracker.
—ariLlevel lor |l i

a—Uploads to shared drive: W:\Primary-Health\Clinic-
Services\Compliance\Variances\Complaints\[YEAR]

a.
b. Emails the SOA-Q&C to complete the complaint tracker.

il ils, i 7 Commented [A5]: Type of report?

efthe Health-and Safety Committee: Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 1.75", No bullets or

M . Priori numbering

_The Variaree-Ceordinater-HPM for Quality and Compliance works with the

supervisorS|Cupervisor-in-Charge to:
Make sure that all steps have been taken to resolve the issue.

Follow the varianee-complaint through closure; and document any continued
action with -dates.

c. _Call the patient to inform them of actions, decisions, resolutions, findings,

etc” - . Commented [A6]: Patients without phones? Ask them to check
i i i i X back within 24 or 48 hours? Ask for a phone number for rep or
e-d. Document the call in the Tracker in-thepatientrecerdbut do not include details alternate at the beginning of process for unhoused? Contact
in the patient’s medical record unless the information is relevant to the patient in preferred manner of communication? (eg text-based for
patient’s continued care. {yes/ne222) the(deaf)

7. Final Review and Closure

03-05-7



The Varianee-Coordinator-HPM for Quality and Compliance reviews-the-variance
report-and-follows these steps:-below-

42-Facilitates discussion at Health and Safety Committee meetings {for Level Il
complaints} as to whether each varianee-complaint report can be closed. A
report is closed when communication has been closed with issuerof
complaintantcomplainant-er-grievanee, when no further action around the
incident is merited by SCHC, or when no legal liability or risk is evident.

4—[ Formatted: Indent: Hanging: 0.31"

b. Reviews the grievance-Complaint Ttracker at least once a month and prepares
a summary of patterns and trends to present at least semi-annually to the
Management Team, the Quality Improvement Committee, and the Co-Applicant
Board.

B. Grievances from IPAs and Health Plans

1. Receipt of Grievance

a. ay—Most grievances should-beare received via the fax/email box DHS PRI /[Formatted: No underline

PHS-COMPLIANCE BHS-PRIPHS-COMPLIANGCE dhspriphs-
compliance@saccounty.gov-DHS PHS-COMPLIANGE to which the HPM for
Quality and Compliance, the SOA-Q&C, the HPMs for Operations, the Medical
Director, the Senior Health Program Coordinators, the Supervising Nurses, and
the Clerical Supervisors have access.

i. The SOA-Q&C or back-up continually scans the email throughout the
business day.

ii. i—The SOA-Q&C will create an entry in the GrievaceGrievance Tracker
upon receiving the grievance and will create a new folder within
W:\Primary-Health\Clinic-
Services\Compliance\Variances\Grievances\[YEAR] for the grievance.

iii. The folder will be labeled with the grievance number provided by the
IPA or Health Plan, not PHI (e.q., MSHPCA-# or PCPC-#).

03-05-8


mailto:dhspriphs-compliance@saccounty.gov
mailto:dhspriphs-compliance@saccounty.gov

iv.  The SOA-Q&C will fill in the top portion of the Grievance Response
Template with the appropriate information; and save the document as
SCHC Grievance Response_[grievance #] in the new folder.

V. i#—The HPM for Quality and Compliance will look up the patient and
assign one or more Supervisors in Charge to investigate and formulate
a draft response to the grievance. The HPM will email the original
grievance and the draft SCHC Grievance Response to the
Supervisor(s) in Charge along with the deadline for the draft response
to be sent back to the HPM.

Vi. The HPM for Quality and Compliance will also assign the grievance
level and communicate that information to the SOA-Q&C.

d)b.} -If a grievance is received other than by fax or email, anetherwayvia-aneother
means—wWhoeeverreceives-a-grievanee-the recipient frem-a-health-plan-oPA
reviews-it-and-looksthe patient-up-in- OCHINto find-ocutsends

forwards it to the

fax/email box DHS PRI PHS-COMPLIANCE where it is handled in accordance /{Formatted: No underline

with A.1.(a) above.—
—MRN

Slini o) p EM S
2—Investigation
2.

a)yFtheperson-whoreceived-the-grievance-The Supervisor(s) in Charge (SIC)

g—Upon receiving the grievance email,
the grievance to understand it and looks up the patient’'s medical record.; -

Commented [A7]: Who does this if not the nurse and how does
that person know there is something pending?

03-05-9


mailto:dhspriphs-compliance@saccounty.gov

a.

h—Within 48 business hours, thesupewisingnwse#henhnterviews any providers, /{Commented [A8]: Fillin person responsible

staff and contractors involved to get more information on what may-have
happened_to contribute to the grievance.—;

b.

=—Within the same 48 hour period,- examines relevant records, such as
medications prescribed, referrals notes, and phone call records.:;

c.
+—Co

d. By the deadline provided by the HPM for Quality and Compliance, places the
final draft grievance response (in Word form) and any requested or relevant
medical records (in .pdf form) in the shared drive folder created by the SOA.

i.  W:\Primary-Health\Clinic-
Services\Compliance\Variances\Grievances\[YEAR]

ii.  The folder will be labeled with the grievance number provided by the
IPA or Health Plan (e.q., MSHPCA-# or PCPC-#).

k—and

—wi—Emails the HPM and SOA-Q&C that s/he has completed the investigation (¢ ted [A9]: Who?

and draft response.

3. Response to the IPA or Health Plan
The b}HPM for Quality and Compliance Variance-Coordinator:

a. Upon receipt of the grievanrce-email-the-\ariance-Coordinator HRPM-for Quality

- from the SIC(s) that the investigation is complete and the draft
response and medical records are in the shared drive folder, reviews these
materials.;

b. Edits and finalizes the response.:

03-05-10



c. _Combines the response and medical records into a single .pdf document.:

a—Securely emails the response to the IPA or health plan from which the grievance
was-originated by thy-received:—yping [secure] into the subject line of the email.

|.°-

i Emails the SOA-Q&C that
the Grievance Tracker entry can be completed.

Fe.
3-4. Documentation

03-05-11



5. Final Review and-Closure

The Variance-Coordinator HPM for Quality and Compliance follows these steps
below::

a. If Level lll_grievance, emails the eemplaintinformationreport to Health and
Safety Committee members within 72 business hours and prepares a summary

to present at the next meeting.

c—Facilitates discussions of the need for corrective action erfurtherescalation-at
Health and Safety Committee meetings.

Grievances\Closed:

g—Reviews the grievanee-Grievance tracker Tracker at least once a month and
prepares a summary of patterns and trends to present at least semi-annually
to the Management Team, Quality Improvement Committee, and the Co-
Applicant Board.

C.

AttachmentsReferences:
Clinic Service Comment Form __—{ Formatted: No underline

03-05-12


file://ADMNS1/Workgrps/Primary-Health/Admin-Services/Policies%20and%20Procedures/Forms/Posted%20Forms/Clinic%20Service%20Comment%20Form.docx

Supervisor Report of Complaint

/[ Formatted: No underline

Grievance Response Template

Contact:

Sharen-Hutehins,-Ph-B-MPH;-Health Program Manager for Quality mprevementand
Compliance

Date-of CABCo=-Applicant Board Approval:

03-05-13


file://ADMNS1/Workgrps/Primary-Health/Admin-Services/Policies%20and%20Procedures/Forms/Posted%20Forms/Supervisor%20Report%20of%20Complaint.docx
file://ADMNS1/Workgrps/Primary-Health/Admin-Services/Policies%20and%20Procedures/Forms/Posted%20Forms/Grievance%20response%20template.docx
file://ADMNS1/Workgrps/Primary-Health/Admin-Services/Policies%20and%20Procedures/Forms/Posted%20Forms/Grievance%20response%20template.docx

County of Sacramento DHS
Primary Health Division

CLINIC SERVICES
Service Comment Form

We want to hear your concerns, problems or compliments. Reporting a problem will not affect
your services. Print or write legibly. If you need assistance, please contact a staff member.

/ Place Patient Label Here \

or Print Patient Information Legibly.
Patient Name: Date:
Representative
Name Date:
Patient
Program: DOB:
\Call back phone number or other way to reach you: /

Describe your comments/concerns:

What would you like to see happen to resolve this concern? Do you have any suggestions?

Signature:
Service Comment Form 03/01/2024 1




County of Sacramento DHS
Primary Health Division

Today’s Date:

[FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY]
Actions Taken: Date: /]

Clinic Program:

[] Adult Medicine [ Call Center [] Family Medicine [ Intgr.Behavioral Health
[] Loaves & Fishes [ Medical Records [] Member Services [ Mobile (Van) Services
[] Pediatrics [] Radiology [] Referrals [] Refugee

[] Registration [] School-Based MH [ Other:

STAFF PRINTED NAME STAFF SIGNATURE

Place form in the designated basket at MA station

Service Comment Form 03/01/2024 2



ACRAMENTO
UNTY

ey Sacramento County Health Center

Supervisor Report of Complaint

Complete this form with as much detail as possible, creating a narrative in chronological order. For Level
I & II complaints, document completely, resolve issue, send to dhspriphs-compliance@saccounty.gov
within three business days. For Levels Ill complaints, email to dhspriphs-compliance@saccounty.gov
within 24 hours. Also attach the original Complaint Form(s) and SCHC Incident Report Forms to the
email.

_
SUPERVISOR IN CHARGE TITLE DATE
Select:
O Level It Complaint about access challenges (e.g., call center wait times, difficulty getting a timely

appointment)
O Level II: Complaint about disrespectful behavior or failure to follow clinical, operational, or fiscal P&P.

O Level Ill:  Compliant about situation that can impact patient safety, violate privacy or security laws, or
involve possible litigation.

LR R R TR SR R R S R R TR R S R S R R R TR L S S S S R R TR R R R R R R R SR S SR S S S R TR R SR R S S TR R TR R SR R SR S R TR SR R R R R S R TR TR TR SR R R T R R TR SR R S S o

List Individuals Involved:

_ () -
PATIENT NAME MRN DOB PHONE
(D) -
GUARDIAN / REPRESENTATIVE RELATIONSHIP PHONE
/
/

PCP NAME CATEGORY (E.G., FACULTY, RESIDENT)

PERSONNEL WHO TOOK COMPLAINT

TITLE

WITNESS 1

Rev. 02/25/24

TITLE

For quality and tracking purposes only. Do not scan into patient's chart.


mailto:dhspriphs-compliance@saccounty.gov
mailto:dhspriphs-compliance@saccounty.gov

]%)I\NI ICY) Sacramento County Health Center

WITNESS 2

Rev. 02/25/24

TITLE

OVER 2

For quality and tracking purposes only. Do not scan into patient's chart.

2



%Acf\g %[ﬂ I(Y) Sacramento County Health Center

Incident Description:

/] AM/PM
INCIDENT DATE TIME

LOCATION

I/

DATE OF RESOLUTION

Tracking:
Received by Senior OA for Quality and Compliance: /[
INITIALS DATE
O Complete [ Needs Follow Up O Corrected/Completed
O Complete report emailed to HMP for Compliance & Quality:  /  /
O Information entered into the Tracker: /-
Reviewed by HMP for Quality and Compliance: [/
INITIALS DATE

O Concur with Level assignment [0 Change Level assignment to:

O Level 111, emailed to members of the Health & Safety Committee: _ / /
Add ultimate resolution and date

Rev. 02/25/24 For quality and tracking purposes only. Do not scan into patient's chart. 3



Rev. 02/25/24

]%J[\N] IQ Sacramento County Health Center

For quality and tracking purposes only. Do not scan into patient's chart.

4



County of Sacramento, Primary Health Center
4600 Broadway, Suite 2500
Sacramento, CA 95820
Phone: 916-875-0183 Fax/Email: dhspriphs-compliance@saccounty.gov

GRIEVANCE RESPONSE FORM

[]Aetna []Anthem []Health Net []Molina [] Nivano [] River City [ ] UC Davis

TO: FROM: Sacramento County Health Ctr
Attention: Name:
Email: Email:
Telephone: Telephone:
Fax: Fax:
Date: \

MEMBER INFORMATION:
Member Name
Date of Birth
CIN Number
Response Due Date

Member’s Concern from grievance

Response

Medical Records

Confidentiality Note: This communication and any attachments may contain privileged or other confidential information protected by HIPAA legislation
(45 CFR, Parts 160 and 164), Section 13402 of Title XlII (Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act) of the American Recovery
and Reinvestment Act of 2009, and additional state and federal privacy and security laws. If you are not the intended recipient, or believe that you have
received this communication in error, please do not print, copy, retransmit, disseminate, or otherwise use the information. Thank you.


mailto:dhspriphs-compliance@saccounty.gov

Policy Issuer Clinic Services
County of Sacramento (Unit/Program)
Department of Health Services Policy Number 03-03
Division of Primary Health :
Policy and Procedure Effective Date 02-02-12
Revision Date 03-0511-24

Title: Incident Reporting

Functional Area: Clinic Operations

Approved By: Susmita Mishra, MD, Medical Director

Policy:

Timely and accurate identification and reporting of incidents facilitates early investigation,
evaluation, and corrective action, if indicated. -When an incident occurs, Sacramento County
Health Center (SCHC) staff members are required to thereughly-complete each step of the

reporting process as soon as possible.
Procedures:

A. Definitions

1. Definition-of-tneident:—Incident” for purposes of this policy is defined as any
occurrence that is not consistent with routine clinic operations and/or that
potentially may or did affect the quality of patient care orf presents a safety risk or
liability. Reportable incidents are included in the following major categories (see
Attachment A: see-Attachment-A-Incident Categories and Relevant Reporting
Workflows and Attachment B: Designated Personnel to Report Incidents, by

Category):

a.

i Ceomplaints made

Abv or on behalf of a patient {directly to t&-SCHC.}

b. Grievance, which is a er-aA-complaint made by or on behalf of a patient to

the Independent Physician/Provider Association (IPA) or health plan and
forwarded to the SCHC for investigation and response.-is-called-a-grievance:

i Complaints and grievances

are classified into-{through-health-plan-or

1PAj}-and-can-be one of three levels.

a) Level | — Access challenges

aj)b) Leveler Il — Delay in

care, disrespectful behavior, or failuire to

follow organizational policies and proceduressuch-as-long-waiting

b)c) Level lll — Issues impacting patient safety, or violating privacy or

security laws, or involving possible litigation; examples include

as wrong medication given, adverse drug reaction, needle-stick.;

b-c. Acute health emergency of patient, visitor, or staff, during SCHC operations,

such as a fall, fainting, heart attack.

03-03-1,

[ Formatted: Underline

,/’[ Formatted: Underline

/{ Formatted: Underline
~
- ,{ Formatted: Font: 10 pt
///{ Formatted: Font: 10 pt
//

/
/
/
/
/ /
//

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

U




ed.Clinical equipment failure; such as inoperable autoclave, temperature probe [ Formatted: Underline

malfunction.

d.e.  Non--clinical equipment malfunction or failure; such as power loss, [ Formatted: Underline

elevator malfunction.

e-f. Unexpected security incident or disaster; such as a threatening patient, [ Formatted: Underline

broken window, building fire.

f.g. Natural disaster with warning; such as flash flood warning or spreading [ Formatted: Underline
epidemic.
h. HIPAA violation; such as sending personal health information (PHI) in a non- [ Formatted: Underline

secured email; failing to cover PHI documents when leaving workstation;-er
Slnnmeesunnenedo s e ble s c o
Not all possible types of incidents are identified in the above categories.

Sheuld-If an employee be-is uncertain-unsureas-te whether to-ernette report an
incident after reviewing this document, s/they should consult with kerthisthe
immediate supervisor (er-manager-of-the-day)-or the supervisor’'s backup as soon as
possible.

B. Reporting Process
1. Verbal Report

a. Staff: Incidents shall be reported verbally immediately to the supervisor or; if
the supervisor is not available, the manager of the day.

Supervisor: The supervisor (or manager of the day) will ensure a report,
written or verbal as appropriate for the incident category, is submitted to the
proper designee within the specified time limit (s—See Incident Categories

and Relevant Reportlng Workflows)—lnetdem—GategeHesrand—Re\lev‘am

b. Designee: The designee follows the protocol for the incident category
involved, including reporting it to the appropriate committee or person- (SSee

DeS|qnated Personnel to Report InC|dents by Cateqorv) Ap,eend»eA—

Commented [ag1]: Agree with Robyn. There is a lot of
information left out here that should be spelled out in another
document and incorporated here, or included in the definitions

2. Written Report above.

Any employee directly involved in or witness to an incident is required to
cooperate with the sSupervisor or dBesignee to carry out an investigation and
complete a written report, if appropriate. The specific form to use is explained in

Attachment A: Incident Categories and Relevant Reporting Workflows. ///—/[ Formatted: Not Highlight
a—\VariancesSupenrvisorin-ChargeComplaints and Grievances
a.
The procedure for reporting, investigating, and responding to complaints and +””*{ Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.25", First line: 0"
grievances is detailed in a separate document, PP-02-05: Complaints and ///{ Formatted: No underline
Grievances. Complaints are reported on the Clinic Services Comment Form. [ Formatted: Font: 10 pt
Clinic-Services- CommentReport.

///{ Formatted: Font: 10 pt
//

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

U U

03-032



https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-02-05%20Variance%20Reporting%20PP_APPROVED.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-02-05%20Variance%20Reporting%20PP_APPROVED.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinics/Clinics%20Forms/Posted%20Forms/Clinic%20Service%20Comment%20Form.docx

b.

Commented [R2]: Link. | see Incident Report on the Intranet

Commented [SH3]: | would not keep this, as this really does
relate only to variances, not other types of incidents.

d.c.

ed.

e. Unexpected Security Incident

) /[ but not Variance Report
———Acute Health Emergency \{

PP .03-
04 Emergency Medical Team Response- outlines how SCHC responds to
medical emergencies in the building. Once the incident is over, the registered
nurse who responded to the emergency fills out the Clinic Services Incident

Report.

The supervisor-alse completes a Supervisor Report of lliness/Injury and /[ Formatted: No underline
Worker's Compensation forms,in the event of iliness or injury to a staff /{ Formatted: No underline
member the-eve y j ¥ \[ Formatted: No underline

L

Clinical Equipment Failure

The supervising nurse of the affected area will-reports the issue verbally to
the Health Program Manager for Operatlons andwho—te—the%@HG—Eaerhhes

will complete (or send to

a desmnee who will complete) the Maintenance Form from OneNote and

email it to- DHS-Facilities@saccounty-netas set up through the OneNote
dashboard.

Non--Clinical Equipment Malfunction or Failure

If the situation is dangerous, the person who discovers the problem reports it
immediately by phone to the Security Desk (916-874-2575). —Otherwise,
staff informs tFhe area superwsor who will mp%th%ssue#ereattweeby

completes the Safety Issue
Form from OneNote, and emails it to DHS-Safety@saccounty.govaet. Once this

Formatted: Hyperlink, Font: (Default) Calibri, No underline,
Font color: Auto

process is complete, the supervisor will also submit and-follows-it-up-with-a

Formatted: Underline

written Clinical Services Incident Report to the party identified in Attachment

A

Field Code Changed

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Any staff member or contractor who retices-oridentifiessees a potential

Formatted: No underline

security incident contacts a nearby Security Officer orf calls the Security Desk

immediately at 916-874-2575. -This number is written on the back of every Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

permanent building badge. AfterwardsThen; the staff member or contractor

informs the supervisor and the SCHC Facilities Liaison, Formatted: Font: 10 pt

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

U U U L )

XX//JL

03-033,



https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-03-04-Emergency-Medical-Response.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-03-04-Emergency-Medical-Response.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Attachments/Clinic%20Services%20Incident%20Report.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Attachments/Clinic%20Services%20Incident%20Report.docx
https://personnel.saccounty.net/Documents/supervisorsreportofinjury.pdf
https://insidetrd.saccounty.gov/Documents/Workers%20Comp%20Claim%20Form%20DWC1.pdf
mailto:DHS-Safety@saccounty.gov
mailto:DHS-Facilities@saccounty.net

When time permits, staff involved should-helps the supervisor and Facilities
Liaison complete the Clinical Services Incident Report and follow the

procedure in Attachment A.

g-f. Natural Disaster

Any staff member or contractor who learns about an existing or pending
natural disaster that may impede the ability of SCHC to fully function fuiy
notifies the SCHC Emergency-Preparedness-CoordinaterHealth Program

Manager for Quality and Compliance as-well-as-the OCHIN-EMR Supervisor

as soon as possible bui-ne-later than-the-next business-day. There is no

specific form to use for this report.
h-.g.  HIPAA Incident

- PP 08-

—_ @

12 Security Violations and Reporting outlines how to report a HIPAA incident.

Patient allegations of a HIPAA violation are reported via the HIPAA Privacy

Complaint — Form 3009,

Incidents are reported to the SCHC HIPAA Compliance Officer and Deputy
Compliance Officer by e-mailing orf faxing DHS PRI PHS-COMPLIANCE.
S;The SCHC HIPAA Compliance Officer and Deputy Compliance Officer
whe-work with the supervisor to investigate the potential incident and report
to the County HIPAA Officers via the First Report of HIPAA Incident form.

ih. Other Incidents not Defined in this Policy

Staff:
Any employee or contractor directly involved in or witness to an incident is

required to cooperate with the supervisor in charge or designee to carry out

an investigation and complete a written repertformSCHClinic Services

Incident Report-f-apprepriate. In all instances, the following guidelines apply:
i
ii.

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

The form must be completed in its entirety.
Handwriting must be legible.

The date and time of the occurrence must be recorded as accurately as
possible.

First and last names should be used for all individuals involved.

Only factuatinfersmation should be documented. -Opinions and feelings
regarding the incident are not appropriate.

Collateral documentation necessary to substantiate or investigate the
incident should be attached.

The reporter must sign and record the date and time the incident report
was completed.

References to the incident report should not be centained-entered in the
medical record.

Incident reports should not be copied. Submit t-Fhe original form is
submitted-directly to the supervisor or designee within the appropriate
time frame, depending on the incident category.

03-03-4,

[ Formatted: Font: Not Italic

Commented [ag4]: not comfortable giving them until the next
business day to report a natural disaster. Is there an emergency
person who responds to turn off the gas in the event of an
earthquake? Should we describe this process here or refer to
another policy?

7—77*{ Formatted: No underline

,,,,/—/[ Formatted: No underline

_——{ Formatted: No underline

[ Formatted: No underline

[ Formatted: Font: Italic

,{ Formatted: Font: 10 pt

///{ Formatted: Font: 10 pt
//

Formatted: Font: 10 pt



https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-08-12-Security-Violations-Reporting-FIN.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-08-12-Security-Violations-Reporting-FIN.pdf
https://insidecompliance.saccounty.net/Documents/Form%203009-Privacy%20Complaint_122215%20Fillable%20(rev%2003-24-22).pdf
https://insidecompliance.saccounty.net/Documents/Form%203009-Privacy%20Complaint_122215%20Fillable%20(rev%2003-24-22).pdf
https://insidecompliance.saccounty.net/Documents/Form%203009-Privacy%20Complaint_122215%20Fillable%20(rev%2003-24-22).pdf
https://insidecompliance.saccounty.net/Documents/Form%203009-Privacy%20Complaint_122215%20Fillable%20(rev%2003-24-22).pdf

Supervisor:

The supervisor reviews the written or verbal report and investigates, if
appropriate, before completing any required report form and giving it to the
designee.

The supervisor also completes a Supervisor Report of lliness/Injury and Worker’s
Compensation forms in the event of an employee injury.

Designee:
The designee reviews the written report er—}verbalkeperband investigates, if /{Commented [ag5]: Section h indicates that a written report is
appropriate, before completing any required reporting form and giving it to the always required?

oversight body. The designee is responsible for keeping records that contain the
date of an incident, relevant findings, the names of individuals involved, and the
outcome.

The designee also reviews the Supervisor Report of lliness/Injury and Worker’s
Compensation forms before itisthey are sent to Risk Management.

C. Routing and Maintenance of Incident Reports

1. Designee Duties: Fhe-Designee

a. Reviewss all incident reports.

b. Documents ss his/her comments and any additional corrective action or follow
up that may be indicated.

c. Forwards ss-a copy of the original report and additional findings to designated
oversight committee or individual (if one exists).

i. Ensures ss-the report is sent to all appropriate individuals and committees
and ensures that everyone all-receiving a copyies of the report isare
identified inen the report.

2. 2-The Senior Office Assistant for Quality and Compliance Ensuremaintains ss-the
completion-of-the-tracking forms for all Clinic Service Comment Forms, SCHC
Incident Reports and First Report of HIPAA Incident formsmuwngte&teeme

and maintains the record for the-specified-time-frames specified-inPolicy /{ Commented [ag6]: It says 5 years below in D.2. should we just
minimum of five years. put that here?

D. Documentation

1. Incident reports are not filed-inpart of or attached to the patient or representative’s
medical record.

2—As a medical best practice, any facts pertaining to a the-patient’s’ health and well-

beingg; aligning-with-medical-practices-should be added_to the patient’s in-the
medical record_and maintained for 10 years.

3-2. The original report is to remain on file for a period of five (5) years at the clinic
site where the incident happened.

The Compliance Team will review incident report tracking at least quarterly. { Formatted: Font: 10 pt

///{ Formatted: Font: 10 pt
//

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

03-03-5,




The Health Program Manager for Quality and Compliance will present trends in
incident types and frequencies (using de-identified and aggregated data) to the
Management Team and the Co-Applicant Board at least semi-annually for GAB

review, discussion, and recommendations on strategies that may reduce the frequency

of incidents.

Attachments:
Attachment A: Incident Categories and Relevant Reporting Workflows
Attachment B: Designated Personnel to Report Incidents, by Category

References:
PP 03-04 Emergency Medical Team Response

PP 02-05: Variance-Reporting and Investigation of Complaints and Grievances Complaints

/[ Formatted:

Font: (Default) Arial

/{ Formatted:

Font: (Default) Arial

and-GrievancesReperting, - -
PP 08-12 Security Violations and Reporting | Formatted: No underine :
Supervisor Report of lliness/Injury ~—{ Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial
Worker’'s Compensation RepertClaim Form \[ Formatted: No underline
i ; i \[ Formatted: No underline

Incident Categories and Relevant Reporting Workflows

/{ C ted [R7]: Post on the intranet and link here and in doc

Variance-Report
SCHCClinie-Services Incident Report

HIPAA Privacy Complaint — Form 3009

/[ Formatted:

No underline

Clinic Services Comment Form

/{ Formatted:

Font: (Default) Arial

First Report of HIPAA Incident

Field Code Changed

HIPAA Security Incident Management Process for PHI and EPHI

Attachments:
Attachment A: Incident Categories and Relevant Reporting Workflows
Attachment B: Designated Personnel to Report Incidents, by Category

Contact:
Sharen-Hutehins;-Health Program Manager for Quality and Compliance

Co-Applicant Board Approval:
14H20/2020

03-03-6,

No underline

Formatted:

s{{ Formatted:

No underline

o U G ) U U U L

Formatted:

Font: 10 pt

Formatted:

Font: 10 pt

Formatted:

Font: 10 pt



https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-03-04-Emergency-Medical-Response.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-02-05%20Variance%20Reporting%20PP_APPROVED.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-02-05%20Variance%20Reporting%20PP_APPROVED.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-08-12-Security-Violations-Reporting-FIN.pdf
https://personnel.saccounty.net/Documents/supervisorsreportofinjury.pdf
https://insidetrd.saccounty.gov/Documents/Workers%20Comp%20Claim%20Form%20DWC1.pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Attachments/Clinic%20Services%20Incident%20Report.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Attachments/Clinic%20Services%20Incident%20Report.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Attachments/Clinic%20Services%20Incident%20Report.docx
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Attachments/Clinic%20Services%20Incident%20Report.docx
https://insidecompliance.saccounty.gov/Documents/Form%203009-Privacy%20Complaint_122215%20Fillable%20(rev%2003-24-22).pdf
https://insidecompliance.saccounty.gov/Documents/Form%203009-Privacy%20Complaint_122215%20Fillable%20(rev%2003-24-22).pdf
https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinics/Clinics%20Forms/Posted%20Forms/Clinic%20Service%20Comment%20Form.docx
https://insidecompliance.saccounty.net/Documents/Form%203009-Privacy%20Complaint_122215%20Fillable%20(rev%2003-24-22).pdf
https://insidecompliance.saccounty.gov/Documents/HIPAA%20Security%20Incident%20Process%20Flow%20Chart.pdf#search=HIPAA%20Security%20Incident%20Management%20Process%20for%20PHI%20and%20EPHI

Attachment A: Incident Categories and Relevant Reporting Workflows

The designee may relay the information or investigative findings to another individual or a committee (as noted).

Incident Categories:
Report all incidents to your supervisor AND designated person in charge by incident category.

Level 1or Il Level Il Patient Medication Acute Clinical
Patient Complaint or or Vaccine Patient Equipment
Complaint Grievance or Error Health failure

or Grievance other Patient or Examples: Emergency Examples:

Examples: staff Health wrong dose Examples: fall, Autoclave

Access issue, Threat prescribed; heart attack, breaks, Temp

disrespect; Examples: vaccine given fainting; probe

PP violation; Needle stick, too early Report same malfunctions;

Report wyin 72 threat of suit; Report same day using Report same

hours using RE,_partsame Ia‘ay dﬂ"_’ using Incident day verbally

Supervisor using Supervisor Incident Report

Report of Report: of Report

Complaint to Compliant to

DHS PRI PHS- DHS PRI PHS-

COMPQANCE CONP LI“ == J L l
rTTTT T L | I e T B
: Designee: | : Designee: 1 : Designees: : : Designee: | : Designees: :
| HPM for : : HEM for : | Medical Dir., | 1 HPM for : | Supervising |
: Quality & 1| Quality & 1 : PD?;:;?:‘" : : Operations | : Nurse of :
; Compliance : : Compliance : : prescribar | : of area : | area |
i ) || sendto DHS : ! | | Sanousva |
1 | | |
L"T" i L__T___} | compuance | L__I_ i '_f"f”_"l‘f___'

Variance Health & Health & Medical SCHC

Committee Safety Safety Director Facilities

Committee Committee Liaison

Report
immediately
verbally

Report same
day by
Maintenance
Form and email

Unexpected Natural HIPAA Incident
Security Disaster with Examples:
Incident or Warning Gave patient AVS
Disaster Examples: of other patient,
Examples: Warning of faxed records to
Disruptive potential fire wrong number,
patient, broken or flood, sent PHI by email,
window, active spreading left PHI in public
shooter, epidemic; view;
building on fire; Report no later Report same day
Call Security than the next using Privacy
Desk at 874~ business day. Complaint Form
2575 (if from patient)
immediately. or Incident Report
el "--.--l----. -—-_—l ————— |
| Designee: : I Designee: |1 Designee: |
! Sec,u,ri,w O,fﬁ.cer& 1 : Emergency 1 : SCHC HIPAA 1
: ;2?:?:;:;?:}( : : PreIJarI'edness : 1 Cor.npliance :
: using Incident n© oordinator : : Offluz_er :
1 Report to DHS- ] i Wff’hl.n 72 hours .
| Safety@saccounty. I 11 file First Report of |
1 net : : | | HIPAA Incident 1
R S S B
4600 Brdwy POC] | Emergency Department &
Committee & Preparedness County HIPAA
Emergency Team Officers

Preparedness
Team

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Right: 0", Space After: 10 pt,
Line spacing: Multiple 1.15 li, Border: Top: (No border),
Bottom: (No border), Left: (No border), Right: (No border),
Between : (No border)

Formatted: Left: 1", Right: 1", Top: 1.06", Bottom: 0.81",
Width: 11", Height: 8.5"

03-03-2

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

A



Attachment B: Designated Personnel to Report Incidents, by Category

Formatted: Left, Right: 0", Space After: 10 pt

Formatted: Left: 0.9", Right: 0.9", Top: 0.9", Bottom:
0.6", Width: 11", Height: 8.5"

Incident Category Designated Position Person
Patient Complaint or Grievance or other Patient or Health-Program Manager (HPM) for Quality & Sharon Hutchins
Staff Health Threat Compliance
Acute Patient Health Emergency HPM for Operations for program involved Michelle Besse or Robin Skalsky
Medication of Immunization Error Medical Dire'ctor, Pharma.cY Directo.r, VFCVFA Sumi Mishr'fa, Sara Lee, Muna Adhikari,
Coordinator, Prescribing provider provider
Clinical Equipment failure Supervising Nurse for program(s) involved Muna Adhikari or Ainur Sapargaliyeva
Non-Clinical Equipment Failure Disrupting Business Facilities Liaison Julian Mason
Unexpected Security Incident or Disaster Security Officer Multiple — security desk
Natural Disaster with Warning Emergency Preparedness Coordinator Sharon Hutchins
HIPAA Incident SCHC HIPAA (Deputy) Compliance Officer Sharon Hutchins / Sandra Johnson
Oversight Person or Committee Membership

Medical Director; HPMs for Operations; HPM for Quality & Compliance; Clerical Supervisors;
Variance (i.e. Complaint of Grievance) Committee Supervising Nurses, Senior HPCs

Medical Director, HPMs for Operations; HPM for Quality & Compliance; Clerical Supervisors;

Formatted: Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No border),
Left: (No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No border)

Health & Safety Committee Pharmacy Director, Senior Administrative Analyst, Sr. HPCs, Supervising Nurses
Health Program Managers for Operations Michelle Besse or Robin Skalsky

Medical Director Dr. Mishra

Facility Manager Kirsten Apaza (4600 Broadway) or Ainur Sapargaliyeva /Rebecca Naughton (Loaves & Fishes)
4600 Broadway POC Committee Representatives from each division & department in building

Emergency Preparedness Team Representatives from each suite at 4600 Broadway and other sites

Department and County HIPAA Officers Michelle Ross & Shelley Cooper

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

03-032

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

o




Appendix A: Incident Categories and Relevant Reporting Workflows

Incident Categories:
Report all incidents to your supervisor AND designated person in charge by incident category.
The designee may relay the information or investigative findings to another individual or a committee (as noted).

Level I or Il Level Il Patient Medication Acute Clinical Unexpected Natural HIPAA Incident
Patient Complaint or or Vaccine Patient Equipment Security Disaster with Examples:
Complaint Grievance or Error Health failure Incident or Warning Gave patient AVS
or Grievance | |otherPatientor || gxamples: Emergenc Examples: Disaster Examples: of other patient,
gency
Examples: Staff Health wrong dose Examples: fall, | | Autoclave Examples: Warning of faxed records to
Access issue, Threat prescribed; heart attack, breaks, Temp Disruptive potential fire wrong number, ‘
disrespect; Examples: vaccine given fainting; probe patient, broken or flood, sent PHI' by emg/l,
PP violation; Needle stick, too early Report same malfunctions; window, active spreading le.ft PHI in public
Report w/in 72 threat of suit; Report same day using Report same shooter, epidemic; view;
hours using Report same .day day using Incident day verbally building on fire; Report no later Report s.ame day
Clinic Services using Supervisor Incident Report Report Call Security thar'1 the next :l:smg rr-“’::y
Repurteoft Form Repor; of Report immediately Desk at 874- business day. (i?::r‘znimati:::;
and Supervisor Compliant to verbally 2575 Incid P R
. DHS PRI PHS- immediately. or Incident Report
Complaint to CORARIAMNEE
UHb PH ,JH - CUIVIFLITRAINUL
COMPNANCE I J l l l l l
oo S S T N o TT T SreTTTTT T ot T
Designee: 1 | Designee: 1, Designees: : | Designee: | : Designees: ! | Designee: 'l pesignee: I Designee:
I ! - e I I L T I g
HPM for . ' HPM for 'y Medical Dir., |1 HPM for 'y Supervising 1 I Security Officer & | = Emergency 1! SCHC HIPAA
. 1 N Iy Pharmacy 1! . 1 1 1 I Facilities Liaison 1! .
Quality & I 1 Quality & (. | Operations |  Nurse of | 11 Preparedness ! Compliance
Compliance ! li 1, Director, ! | of area T area I Report same 1 Report same day | | Coordinator I Officer
P 1 Compliance |1 b occriber . i ! o] | using Incident h e
. | I send to DHS ! 1 i ! Report within 1 day by | Report to DHS- 1 ! I Within 72 hours
1 I : PRI PHS- : | I : 24 hours via : Mamtensnce . Safety@saccounty. : | : | file First Report of
1 I I I, OneNote Form and email | pet ! I HIPAA Incident
l __ _JT I (S _JT — — — 1. COMPLIANCE I _-Ij_ - T;f . R ) I _-l-_ TRt
T Vs T B i E ;-------1-------, pmmmmmm e 1pom—--—- 1 --------
| Variance i | Health & i: Health & |1 Medical 1| SCHC i I 4600 Brdwy POC! | Emergency |1 Department &
. 1 1 - 1 .
I Committee | i Safety :E Safety E | Director i i Facilities i ! Committee & i ! Preparedness || County HIPAA
. . .. 1 1 .
b e <1 Committee i Committee |L-------oo-- = ! Liaison H i Emergency 1| Team i i Officers
ST R i i | Preparedness ! Il T E R P e P e
e | Team i
B o e e e 1

Rev. 02/25/2024



Appendix B: Designated Personnel to Report Incidents, by Category

Incident Category Designated Position Person
Patient Complaint or Grievance or other Patient or Esitwi:r:igram Manager (HPM) for Quality & Sharon Hutchins
Staff Health Threat P
Acute Patient Health Emergency HPM for Operations for program involved Michelle Besse or Robin Skalsky
—_ N Medical Director, Pharmacy Director, VFCVFA Sumi Mishra, Sara Lee, Muna Adhikari,
Medication or Immunization Error . o . -
Coordinator, Prescribing provider provider
Clinical Equipment failure Supervising Nurse for program(s) involved Muna Adhikari or Ainur Sapargaliyeva
Non-Clinical Equipment Failure Disrupting Business Facilities Liaison Julian Mason
Unexpected Security Incident or Disaster Security Officer Multiple — security desk
Natural Disaster with Warning Emergency Preparedness Coordinator Sharon Hutchins
HIPAA Incident SCHC HIPAA (Deputy) Compliance Officer Sharon Hutchins / Sandra Johnson
Oversight Person or Committee Membership
Medical Director; HPMs for Operations; HPM for Quality & Compliance; Clerical Supervisors;
Variance (i.e. Complaint of Grievance) Committee Supervising Nurses, Senior HPCs

Medical Director, HPMs for Operations; HPM for Quality & Compliance; Clerical Supervisors;

Health & Safety Committee Pharmacy Director, Senior Administrative Analyst, Sr. HPCs, Supervising Nurses
Health Program Managers for Operations Michelle Besse or Robin Skalsky

Medical Director Dr. Mishra

Facility Manager Kirsten Apaza (4600 Broadway) or Ainur Sapargaliyeva /Rebecca Naughton (Loaves & Fishes)
4600 Broadway POC Committee Representatives from each division & department in building

Emergency Preparedness Team Representatives from each suite at 4600 Broadway and other sites

Department and County HIPAA Officers Michelle Ross & Shelley Cooper

02/25/2024




Sacramento County Health Center
Incident Report

NAME OF PERSON COMPLETING REPORT SIGNATURE
AM / PM
DATE OF INCIDENT TIME OF INCIDENT
AM/PM
NAME OF SUPERVISOR NOTIFIED DATE OF NOTIFICATION  TIME OF NOTIFICATION
Site of Incident:
[0 Broadway Site
U] Adult Services [ Chest Clinic [ Pediatrics
U PH Lab UJPharmacy L1 Quest Draw Station
[0 Radiology [ Refugee [1Sexual Health Clinic
[1Other:
[0 Loaves and Fishes Site
(1 Mobile Medical Center Van / Street Medicine / Location:
[0 School-Based Health Center site / Location
Type of Incident:
0 Medical treatment/medication error O Equipment malfunction or failure
COHIPAA violation [0 Adverse drug reaction
OO Emergency Medical Response Team* O Patient transport via first responders
O Patient, visitor, or staff injury O Property damage or loss
[0Violence or threat of violence O Threat of a claim
0 Diagnostic testing error/problem O Other:

*If EMRT involved:
EMRT member names:

Patient MRN: Patient name:

Visitor name (if any):

Collateral documentation attached: [ YES [ NO

Rev. 02/25/2024 1



Describe Incident: (Facts only. Who, What, When, Where, How):

Immediate action taken

This section to be completed by supervisor or manager

Supervisor/Manager assessment and corrective action

Copies distributed to:
1 Medical Director 1 HPM for Operations _1 dhspriphs-compliance@saccounty.gov

OOther:

Rev. 02/25/2024 2



Rev. 02/25/2024



Policy Issuer . .
Y Clinic Services

County of Sacramento (Unit/Program)
Department of Health Services Policy Number 03-06
Division of Primary Health Services :
Policy and Procedure Effective Date 09-18-13
Revision Date 03-0813-24
Title: Referral Management — Medical Home Functional Area: Clinic Operations

Approved By: Susmita Mishra, Medical Director

Policy:

Sacramento County Health Center (SCHC) is committed to providing a primary care medical
home for assigned patients with active coverage and ensuring that patients receive the
specialty services ordered by their provider as part of their covered services.

Procedures:

A. Documentation

1.

SCHC Primary Care Providers (PCP) use the Order Entry section of the Electronic
Health Record (EHR) to order referrals.

The PCP ensures pertinent clinical documentation is included in the “Notes”
section for the specific referral from the referral tab. The PCP’s narrative in the
notes section is specific and not left blank, per PP 08-14 Documentation,

Referrals are ordered as either routine or urgent. Urgent referrals must include
the reason for urgency. The timeframes are:

a. Urgent referrals are processed by the Referral Team (RT) in three business
days.

b. Routine referrals are processed by the RT in five business days.

During all steps of referral processing, the provider may view the referral progress

in the Referral tab of the EHR. RT communicates with the PCP via Referral In
Basket (IB) messages for referrals requiring action. There are no future referrals.

B. Processing Referral

1.

Throughout the workday, RT Coordinators assign referrals to themselves based
on the rReferral tFfeam aAssignment-sdocument.

The RT confirms eligibility and SCHC assignment, checks for referral completion,
and reviews for completeness. Patients must be enrolled members in an active
status and assigned to SCHC.

a. If the patient does not have eligibility and/or SCHC assignment, RT notifies
Member Services (MSMS) using a Referral IB Message to MS pool in
OCHIN to facilitate eligibility or switch to SCHC.

If the patient has eligibility, but is not in the health plan’s portal, the-MS will
notify the IPA. -RT closes referral and adds status reason of Denied —
Ineligible for lservices.

~| Formatted: No underline

{Formatted: No underline

Commented [ag1]: Why would an eligible patient be
denied if an ineligible patient receives assistance in the
preceding paragraph?

If patient reinstates eligibility or is reassigned to SCHC within 60 days from
referral order date, MS notifies assigned RT Coordinator to reactivate the

03-06-1

Commented [DB2R1]: Patients are not eligible to be
seen if not assigned to us PLUS their coverage must
be active.



https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-08-14-Documentation-11-04-14.docx

referral. -If more than 60 days, provider will reorder referral_if it is still
necessary.

b. A complete referral includes:
*  Aa signed progress note;
» A diagnosis code;
*  Celinical details in Notes sufficient for managed care; and

*  Rrelevant lab/exam/imaging/Cures reports following the Referral
Quick Reference document.

c. If an ordered referral is incomplete, the RT Coordinator updates the referral
status reason to Incomplete Clinical Info and works with the provider to resolve /
lissues| to completing the referral. -Thatis may-ean involve:

i. Ddeferring the referral for 2 days to allow provider to complete encounter.  \

»  If provider still has not completed encounter, referral is transferred
to a RT RN for follow up.- Once complete, RT RN will submit packet
to IPA via portal.

» If referral is still not complete, RT RN will change the status of
referral to CLOSED and send Referral IB Message to provider.

ii. Ppending additional orders needed for authorization submission and \
notifying provider to sign order.

»  RT Coordinator sends provider Referral IB Message to sign pended
orders.

«  Referral can be deferred for 30 calendar days| to allow results
processing.

» Ifresults are not available after 30 calendar days, referral is
transferred to a RT RN for follow up. Once complete, RT RN will
submit packet to IPA via portal.

« Ifreferral is still not complete, RT RN will change the status of
referral to/CLOSED|and send Referral IB Message to provider.

-Note: it is expected that all patient encounters are in closed status within 24
hours for urgent referrals and two (2) business days for routine referrals.

3. Care Everywhere Referral Management (CERM)

Referrals that can be submitted through CERM, add the provider information for
entity and change referral status to OPEN.

4. Requesting Authorization

a. Assigned RT Coordinator:
i. Prepares packet and sends to health plan/IPA/specialist and confirms
receipt.

i—Filess all packets in designated folder at: W:\Primary-Health\Clinic-
Services\MEDICAL HOME FOLDER\restore\Referral Files Cabinet-

using this naming convention: MRN last name_first name_referral type
03-06-2

Hil.

Commented [ag3]: | am confused by using the term
CLOSED. When | call referrals for follow up, | have
been told that closed means no further action will be
taken. If | haven’t heard from the IPA, how can | tell
where the referral is hung up? Does closed just mean
it went to the IPA? If that's so, then marking a referral
closed when the dr. didn’t follow through with orders
means we can't tell where the referral went. What if it's
bounced back for more infor? Is a new referral
opened? If I'm told that it's closed, it could have gone
to the IPA or back to the doctor where it is sitting in an
inbox?

Commented [DB4R3]: A referral is closed when the
referral coordinator no longer has a responsibility to
follow up, such as the patient is not assigned to the
SCHC, coverage is not active, or the provider has not
completed necessary pieces (ie, signed the progress
note, added a diagnosis code, added clinical details,
sent the patient for relevant labs, exams, imaging, etc)
in a timely manner. If the auth has been sent to the
IPA and has not come back, staff will wait for a
designated amount of time before transferring the
referral to an RN to follow up. If the referral is denied
by the IPA, please see item 5A. Providers are able to
see the history on a referral to indicate where it is in the
process. There will also be specific status and status
reason used to indicate where the referral is in the
referral process.

Commented [ag5]: Closed also means completed in
OCHIN. How does provider know that the referral was
canceled and the patient will not get treatment?

| Commented [DB6R5]: Cancelled refers to when the
referral is no longer needed and will not be processed.

|

Commented [ag7]: ? There are required timelines
and what if the referral is urgent?

[Commented [DB8R7]: Please refer to item A.3.

|
|

Commented [ag9]: How does patient know that no
one is working on the referral anymore? Closed means

\| completed.

\ Commented [DB10R9]: Closed will be used as noted

and only for select reasons as I've noted above. When
a referral is closed because the patient is ineligible for
services, MS should be contacting the patient to inquire
regarding coverage and PCP assignment (item B.2.a.).
If the referral is closed because it is not complete and
provider/supervisor have been notified repeatedly,
which should rarely happen, | believe it would be up to
the PCP to notify the patient. The last time would be
when the patient has been notified of the specialists'
info.

\[ Commented [ag11]: Formatting?




.

CBaily-ehecks the portal daily for approval status and once approved,

V=iV,

V.

vikVi.

sendsthe status to specialist.

If denied by specialist for lack of information, transfers to the RT RN to
resolve. -For aAny other denial, sends the packet to a different specialist.

Upon acceptance by specialist, sends letter with specialist’'s contact
information, -and-instructions, and documents in the referral
communication section,.

Make up to two attempts to reach patients by phone and note contacts in
the referral communication section.

vitvii. Follows up with the specialist to confirm patient’s status with the referral

and documents appointment date, time, and any relevant information.

ixviii. _Closes referral and mark complete. -CERM referrals should remain

open until some visits are completed and then changed to CLOSED.

5. IPA/Health Plan Denials

If the referral is denied by the IPA/Health Plan, the RT RN contacts the IPA
to determine the denial reason and works with provider to update
documentation. -RT RN resubmits packet through the IPA portal and
transfers back to the RT Coordinator. -The provider can choose to write a
Letter of Appeal. If the provider chooses to write a Letter of Appeal, the RT
RN leaves the referral in open status.

a.

6. Referral CancelationClosures

a.

A referral may be CLOSED for the following reasons:

i. 90 days elapsed and enroliee-patient has not participated with
specialist to set upan appointment.

ii. Patient declines to see the specialist.

ii. If the referral is not complete, the RT will message the ordering
provider (or covering provider, for TEACH - site director) for
required items to process the referral. If the provider does not
respond timely, the referral is CLOSED for lack of completeness.

03-06-3

.

AN

N\

Commented [ag12]: Not clear. Are documents
included in what's sent? Or is the letter documented?
Send letter where? To patient? | don't get letters from
SCHC. They come from the IPA. ?

Commented [DB13R12]: Packets of required
documentation for the auth and specialist are sent to
the IPA/Health Plan for auth and to the specialist.
Once the specialist accepts the referral, a letter will be
generated by SCHC that provides the patient with the
specialist’s contact information. We currently do this
now.

Commented [ag14]: Closed and complete? Other

\ [ types of closed distinguished?

\ Commented [BD15R14]: We will also have a status of

Closed and status reason of Results Received when
the results have been received by the Referral Team
and given to the Scanning Team.

_—| Commented [ag16]: How can we tell which one it is?

Who tells the patient what’s going on?

| Commented [BD17R16]: PCP, PCP’s MA, Referral

Coordinator, Call Center. Unsure what is available in
the portal. If it shows the referral status reason, then
that would be another option.




7. RT tTimeframes for Rreferral Pprocessing and \Qeompletionk

Referral component

Timeframe for completion

Staff action if outside
of timeframe

Authorization granted by
health plan/IPA

10 business days
from request

Notify supervisor

Specialty appointment
made by RT

For managed care, 20
business days from
day ordered or
authorization received

Notify supervisor

Suspended for eligibility
or pending labs

15 business days
from referral

Cancel referral and
notify PCP and
supervisor

Internal Referrals

Per specialist availability

Monitor waitlist

Healthy Partners

Per specialist availability

Monitor waitlist

a. Primary Care Pprovider:

#8. Internal Referrals to Specialists

i. Sends referral via order entry to RT, documenting pertinent
clinical information in “Notes” section for the specific referral in the

referral tab.

b. Specialist:

i. Documents the visit in the EHR and notifies the referring provider
when visit is complete by blind/carbon copying (“cc’ing”) PCP.

ii. May place lab orders, imaging and/or medications pertinent to
diagnosis. PCP is carbon copied (“cc’d”) for lab orders.

iii. Requests orders for opiates to be placed by PCP.

c. RT staff:

i. Keeps a referral on the waitlist for 120 days.

ii. Schedules a patient when appointment is [available\.

_—| Commented [ag18]: Confused. How does this work

with the timelines for processing referrals in 3-5
business days?

8.9. Medical Records Team (MRT) Review

a. Regular scheduled meetings are conducted to review the MRT Issue Tracker
for referral status of Health-CenterSCHC patients.

9.10.MRT Scanning Process

a.  Once areport is received via fax or mail and forwarded to the MRT, MRT is
responsible to ensure an efficient and prioritized process of getting the report

03-06-4

/[ Commented [ag19]: Within the proper timelines




to the PCP. This process involves tracking each report.

b. Fhe SMRTisrespensibleforscanning all reports generated by a specialist and

diagnostic reports. {-the-reportis-generated-from-areferral processed-by-the-
MRT

c. _MRT-If the report is generated from an outside referral (and not located in the
referral tab in OCHIN), the report is “back office” scanned.

d. The MRT is responsible to create and maintain scanning workflows.

e. The MRT ensures this policy, workflows, and any changes to workflows, are
communicated to all Health Center staff.

References:

P&P 08-14 Documentation

Referral Quick Reference document
Referral Quick-Reference-document
Referral Team Assignment document
Attachments:

Medi-Cal Timely Access Guidelines

Contact:
XX;Referrals Supervising RN

Co-Applicant-Board Approval Date: 10/16/2020

03-06-5


https://insidedhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Documents/Clinic%20Policies-And-Procedures/Posted%20Policies/PP-CS-08-14-Documentation-11-04-14.docx
file://ADMNS1/Workgrps/Primary-Health/Admin-Services/Policies%20and%20Procedures/Forms/Posted%20Forms/Referrals%20Quick%20Reference%20Sheet.docx

Fiscal Year 2022-23

CAB Financial Report

Percentage of Year 100%
Line Item Budget Year to date Encumbrance Total YTD Percentage Notes
(YTD+Encumbrance)  (Total/Budget)
Revenue
Inter/Intrafund Reimbursements $ 12194362 | $ 11,476,127 | $ - s 11,476,127 94% reimbursements from internal DHS divisions
** REIMBURSEMENT ACCOUNTS
L"tergovemme"ta' Revenue $ 19,600,988 | $ 21,172,596 | $ - s 21,172,596 108% Medi-Cal/Medicare revenue, HRSA, Refugee & ARPA grants
95 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL REV
Charges for Services $ 52000 | $ 41,782 - s 41,782 80% CMISP old pre-2014 service charges and Medical Record Fees
96 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES
t/hscellaneous Revenue S - S 1,520 | $ - S 1,520 Currently Prior Year Revenue
97 - MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
Total Revenue $ 31,847,350 | $ 32,692,025 | $ - S 32,692,025 103%
Expenses
Zersonnel $ 13,490,790 | $ 12,328,150 | $ - S 12,328,150 91% year-end variance due to vacancies throughout fiscal year
10 - SALARIES AND EMPLOYEE
Services & Supplies $ 17,562,000 | $ 15,586,261 | $ 37,442 | 15,623,703 89% variance mostly due to SCOE contract expenditures being lower than budgeted
* 20 - SERVICES AND SUPPLIES
?the' Charges $ 399477 | ¢ 813,060 | $ 8l 813,068 204% Costs for OCHIN, Fonemed, and HMA
30 - OTHER CHARGES
Equipment S - S - S - S - no equipment costs
Intrafund Charges (Allocation costs) $ 2552954 | & 2,710,590 | ) $ 2 710.590 106% some County allocations and Pharmacy pharmaceuticals/supplies came in higher than budgeted,
* 60 - INTRAFUND CHARGES T e e offset in part by lower department and division overhead than budgeted
Total Expenses $ 34,005,230 | $ 31,438,062 | $ 37,450 | $ 31,475,512 93%
GRAND TOTAL
2,157,880 1,253,963 1,216,513 -56%
(Net county Cost) $ 7] ” $ ( 2 » ) $ ( y » ) °
GRANT SUMMARY
Remaining
Available to
HRSA Grant Year Start Grand Year End Total Grant Award Total Claimed Claim Notes
HRSA Homeless (Main) 3/1/2022 2/28/2023 $ 1,386,602 $ 1,386,430 S 172
HRSA ARPA & UDS+ 4/1/2021 3/31/2023 $ 2,599,375 $ 2,248,511 S 350,864
HRSA ARP CIP 9/15/2021 9/14/2024 S 619,603 S - S 619,603 Contruction timeline not yet determined
HRSA HIV 9/1/2022 8/31/2023 $ 325,000 $ 212,369 S 112,631 Spending slow to start
Refugee $ -
RHAP 10/1/2022 9/30/2023 $ 1,789,062 $ 1,322,496 S 466,566 County order tracking - A19453 -- $466K to be drawn in 23-24
RHPP 10/1/2022 9/30/2023 $ 82,014 S 14,268 $ 67,746 County order tracking - A19459 - $40K claimed in 23-24; $27K to be returned in 23-24
RHPP Multi-Year 10/1/2022 9/30/2023 S 153,000 S 24,626 S 128,374 County order tracking - A19468 - $128K remains for future claims
RHPP AHP 10/1/2022 9/30/2023 $ 200,000 $ 13,400 $ 186,600 County order tracking - A19469 - $186K to be claimed in 23-24
Miscellaneous S -
County ARPA - 1 (H4) 1/1/2022 12/31/2024 $ 2,701,919 S 1,208,459 S 1,493,460 remaining to be claimed in 23-24 and 24-25
County ARPA - 2 (H18) 7/1/2022 12/31/2024 $ 250,000 $ 16,042 $ 233,958 remaining to be claimed in 23-24 and 24-25
County ARPA - 2 (H19) 7/1/2022  12/31/2024 $ 319,000 $ 62,123 $ 256,877 remaining to be claimed in 23-24 and 24-25




Period 7 CAB Financial Report
Current Month January
Percentage of Year 58%

Line Item Budget Current Month  Year to date Encumbrance Total YTD Percentage Notes

(YTD+Encumbrance) (Total/Budget)
Revenue
':’:22';\;’;3;2‘:;?;::?;::;2 S 12,284,581 | § 45442 | $ 5795290 | $ 992,943 | $ 6,788,232 55% Typically a lag due to Fiscal processes. Has been catching up!
':‘t:;g‘);’l\el;’;’;ggt;:;‘;;;;L pey | § 222123408 1254324 | $ 14955291 | § - s 14,955,291 67% Medi-Cal/Medicare revenue, HRSA, Refugee & ARPA grants
Shagr:ez:’/;:;rf‘;"fg,? SERVICES $ 18,000 | $ 1,206 | $ 6,491 | $ 613 | 7,104 39% CMISP old pre-2014 service charges and Medical Record Fees
Miscell R
) IS;; aMnZOCLELL:/\\IIeEgL:jS REVENUE S - S - S 63| - S 63 Currently Prior Year Revenue
Total Revenue $ 34,514,921 | $ 1,300,971 | $ 20,757,135 | $ 993,556 | $ 21,750,691 63%
Expenses
Zer;g"’;eA'LARIES AND EMPLOVEE $ 15782496 | § 1,062,004 | $ 8685151 | % 1228 8,685,273 55% Low due to vacancies (currently 20.0 FTE)
Services & Supplies S 18,843,205 | $ 1135058 | § 6378377 | $ 5,992,747 | § 12,371,124 66% Mult_iple FY 23-24 Contracts w_ere executed late in the FY and costs have been slowing getting caught up. SCOE
* 20 - SERVICES AND SUPPLIES invoices have not yet been paid
Sth;; Cg;'_lg:; CHARGES $ 1,060,633 | $ 114379 | $ 667,763 | $ 334723 | $ 1,002,486 95% FY 22-23 Accruals have all now been paid.
Equipment 5 - 5 - S - 5 - S - No Equipment Charges in FY 23-24 as of now
Intrafund Charges (Allocation costs) | ¢ 535 597 | ¢ 419,946 | $ 1,570,377 | $ - s 1,570,377 42%
* 60 - INTRAFUND CHARGES
Total Expenses $ 39,421,631 | $ 2,731,387 | $ 17,301,667 | $ 6,327,593 | $ 23,629,260 60%
GRAND TOTAL
$ 4,906,710 $ 1,430,416 $ (3,455,467) $ 5,334,037 $ 1,878,570 38%
(Net County Cost)
GRANT SUMMARY
Total Grant Remaining Available

HRSA Grant Year Start Grand Year End Award Total Claimed to Claim Notes
HRSA Homeless (Main) 3/1/2023 2/29/2024 $ 1,386,602 S 1,386,602 $ - Spending on track
HRSA ARP CAP 9/15/2021 9/14/2024 S 619,603 $ - S 619,603 Contruction timeline not yet determined
HRSA HIV 9/1/2023 8/31/2024 S 437,631 S 84,102 $ 353,529 $112k have been carried over from previous funding period
HRSA Bridge Funding 9/1/2023 12/31/2024 S 41,886 $ - S 41,886 Funds allocated to vaccines, Board approval was given to spend. Will be drawing down full amount soon
Refugee S -
RHAP FY 22-23 10/1/2022 9/30/2023 S 1,789,062 S 1,789,062 $ - Revised claim was submitted for Q4. Grant funds spent
RHAP FY 23-24 10/1/2023 9/30/2024 $ 1,428,600 $ - S 1,428,600 $115.00 for a comprehensive (fully completed) health assessment & $1,428,600 for administrative costs
RHPP FY 22-23 10/1/2022 9/30/2023 S 82,014 S 54,471 $ 27,543
RHPP FY 23-24 10/1/2023 9/30/2024 $ 139,994 $ - S 139,994 Waiting for BOS approval
RHPP Multi-Year 22-23 10/1/2022 9/30/2023 S 153,000 S 24,626 S 128,374 Spending was slow due to vacancies -2 HSA vacant, 1 MA vacant
RHPP UHP 23-24 10/1/2023 9/30/2024 $ 99,934 $ - S 99,934 Waiting for BOS approval
RHPP AHP 22-23 10/1/2022 9/30/2023 S 200,000 S 22,327 S 177,673 Spending slow due to vacancies - 1 OA vacant
RHPP AHP 23-24 10/1/2023 9/30/2024 $ 199,602 $ - S 199,602 Waiting for BOS approval
Miscellaneous S -
County ARPA - 1 (H4) 1/1/2022 12/31/2024 $ 2,701,919 S 1,268,631 $ 1,433,288 Spending on track, increased April 2023 when HRSA ARPA expired
County ARPA - 2 (H18) 1/1/2022 12/31/2024 S 135,000 $ 18,802 S 116,198 Telehealth Equipment Award. Reallocated $250k to H4 and offered another $150k back
County ARPA - 2 (H19) 7/1/2022 12/31/2024 S 319,000 S 73,976 S 245,024 New award, spending slow to start. Have added staff to expend the grant funds




’SA\C_KAMENTO Sacramento County Health Center
COUNTY Co-Applicant Board

2023-2024 CAB Membership Recruitment Plan

Background

The number of CAB-beard members is governed by CAB bylaws, which permit between 9
and 13 at large voting members and one ex-officio, non-voting member (the HRSA Project
Director). If CAB needs additional resources to accomplish its workload, this number can
be increased by CAB action in amending the bylaws. HRSA requirements mean that the
Board must have at least 51% consumer members. The current composition is 9 members,
with 4— Commumty members, 5 consumer members (one of whom does not regularly attend

Intention

It is the intention of €AB-Beard-CABto arrive at a membership of 11-13 members by the end
of December 20232024, with at least two new consumer members to maintain the mandated
percentage.

Board Composition: Representativeness and Skills

Based on the unique demands placed upon the EAB-Beard-CAB to ensure its committees have

the skills and/or lived experiences helpful to fulfill the requirements of basic good

government operations, (See “Health Center Program Governance Requirements Governing
Board Responsibilities and How to Do Them”), we propose_to recruit members with the
following partiewlarskills and characteristics-thatshould-make-especially-effective members

B e e e

e Knowledge of and ability to represent (including, but not limited to, via lived
experience) Health Center’s client populations, focusing on those currently
not/under-represented on the Board (e.g., undecumentedpatients without legal
documentation;; individuals who are not proficient in English:ren-English-preficient;
individuals who identify as LGBTQIA+; -individualsand/er-parents or guardians of
patients obtaining school-based services).

e Business experience

e Experience in strategic planning

e Experience in providing health or human services to populations similar to those
served by the Health Center

Method

The Governance Committee will reach possible applicants using the following means. The
first priority is to ensure the required patient member percentage (51% minimum) to
remain compliant with HRSA regulations.

. Contmue recrultment videos in building lobbies. Add closed captioning and

to the existing video.

Approved-by-CABon-8/18/2023 1

~| Commented [SH1]: Can we change to consumer? Check

HRSA regs




’S@AMENTO Sacramento County Health Center
COUNTY Co-Applicant Board

e Refresh recruitment posters within building posting those with the QR code.

e Provide a refreshed flyer—document to Health Center providers detailing the
attributes we need, so they can recruit among their patients. Finding the needed skills
among the Health Center Client base is the preferred alternative.

e If sufficient patient members have been recruited, D[Place\ an ad in the Sacramento

County volunteer newsletter for volunteers with lived experience or experience
serving populations similar to those served by the Health Center but not or under-
represented by the current CAB membership_and approach partner agencies for
assistance in recruitment,

Evaluation of Applicants

As specified in the CAB Bylaws, the Governance Committee will manage the recruitment
process for the current and future vacancies. The Committee will identify a contact person
to welcome potential members, prepare and manage advertising, and follow up on
recruitment efforts. Interested persons will be referred to the contact person by (other)
Board Members, the Health Program Manager, or clinic staff. The contact person will answer
questions, provide information about the responsibilities and opportunities for service on
the board, provide examples of agendas and minutes for meetings, and invite the potential
board member to attend an online or in person CAB meeting. If requested, the contact person
will send the CAB Member Application. The candidate will also be offered the opportunity
to speak with the CAB Chair-erViee-Chair. For 20232024, the recruitment contact person
will be the HRSA Health Program Manager.

The Governance Committee will review applications, giving special attention to the
experiences, skills, and abilities the candidates would bring to the Board and identifying their
commitment to the work of the Board committees who specifically request assistance, and
forward those applications that they will support to the Health Program Manager to check
references. The Health Program Manager will summarize the comments by references for
the Governance Committee. If the references are positive, the Governance Committee will
recommend that the CAB vote to elect the candidate as a member.

At the CAB meeting attended by the potential CAB member, the candidate will be asked to
talk about his or her experience and interest in becoming a board member. If the applicant
prefers, he or she may attend the first meeting, and at a following meeting address
experience and interest with the Board.

Board Committees that require particular skills, experience, and abilities to fulfill their
responsibilities will relate these needs to the Governance Committee for recruitment

purposes.

References

e 20232024 Health Center Co-Applicant Board Membership Roster

Approved-by-CABon-8/18/2023 2

{ Commented [SH2]: | don’t think we did this last year.

}

_— [ Formatted: Font: Cambria




’S@AMENTO Sacramento County Health Center
UNTY

co Co-Applicant Board

Sacramento County Health Center Co-Applicant Board Bylaws, 26212023

National Association of Community Health Centers, Inc. Governance Information
Bulletin #4 as described in the “Health Center Program Governance Requirements
Governing Board Responsibilities and How to Do Them,” prepared by National
Associate of Community Health Centers and funded by the Health Resources and
Services Administration, Bureau of Primary Health Care (HRSA/BPHC), pages 1.1,
4.1,4.3,6.1,7.1,and 9.1.



o]

<
crm
zZ
=
<0

Sacramento County Health Center
Co-Applicant Board

BOARD BYLAWS

Revision Date: November 17, 2023



Table of Contents

INETOAUCTION ...ttt ettt et e et e s bt e st e e nabeenaneeniee s 3
ATECIE |1 PUMPOSE ...ttt ettt e et e e e st e e e et e e e s e e e e nnteeeeannneeean 3
Article 11: ReSpONSIDIlItIES ........cooiiiiii e 3
Article lll: Limitations of AUhOTItY ..........coiiiiiii e 4
ATECIE TV MEMDETS. ...t e et e e e e e e neeas 5
SeCHON 1: MEMDEISNIP ... eiiiiiiiee e e e e et e e e a e e eneeeeennneeeeas 5
Section 2: Membership QUAlIfiCatioNS .........coooiiiiiii e 5
Section 3: Member Recruitment, Selection, and Ratification ...............cccoooceiiiii, 6
Section 4: Responsibilities and Rights of Members ................cccooi 7
Article Vi Term Of OffiCe ... uiiiiii e 7
ATICIE VI: REMOVAI ...t 8
Article VII: Conflict Of INTErest .........viiiiiie e 8
Article VI COMPENSALION. ......ccciiieiiiiie et e s e e e e s s e e e esaeeeeneeeeeanneeeeennes 8
ACIE IX: MEEEINGS .t e e e e et e e et e e e e e e eneeeeenee 9
Section 1: Regular MEELINGS. ......cccuiiiiiiie et e e ae e et e e e ereaeeenees 9
Section 2: CondUCt Of MEETING ......coiuiieeiiie e 9
Section 3: Open and PUDIIC ..........eiiiiiiiii e 9
Section 4: Notice, Agenda and Supportive Materials ............cccoeceveiiiiieiiiiiee e 9
Section 5: Special MEEHINGS ........ociiiuiiiiiiiie et 9
Section 6: Quorum and Voting Requirements ............cceviieriieniienieese e 10
Article X: Officers INterest.........c.oo i 10
Section 1: ENGIDIlILY ...oooviiiiie s 10
Section 2: Nomination and EIeCtion .............cccoiiiiiiiiiii e 10
Section 3: Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair............ccoooueiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 10
SECHON 41 VACANCIES ..ottt 11
Section 5: ReSPONSIDIlIIES........ureeiiiiiiiiie e e aree e 11
Article XI: Amendments and DiSSOIULION ...........cociiiiiiiiiiiice e 11
CertifICALION ...ttt be et et reeanee 12
Appendix A: Conflict of INEresSt..... ... 13
SCHC Co-Applicant Board Bylaws 2

Revision Date: 04/16/2021



Introduction

This body shall be known as the Sacramento County Health Center Co-Applicant Board, and
shall be hereafter referred to as "CAB". The CAB is also known as "Board" under Health
Resources and Services Administration (HRSA). The CAB shall serve as the independent
local co-applicant governing board pursuant to the Public Health Services Act and its
implementing regulations. The County of Sacramento, a public entity and political subdivision
of the State of California, shall act as co-applicant with the CAB.

Article I: Purpose

The CAB is the community-based governing board mandated by the Health Resources
Services Administration's ("HRSA") Bureau of Primary Health Care ("BPHC") to set health
center policy and provide oversight of the County's Federally Qualified Health Center
("FQHC"), which shall be hereafter referred to as "Health Center."

The CAB shall work cooperatively with the County of Sacramento acting in its role as co-
applicant, to support and guide the Health Center in its mission:

Vision:
To be an exceptional health care center valued by the communities we serve and our
team.

Mission:

To provide high quality, patient-focused, equitable healthcare for the underserved in
Sacramento County, while providing training for the next generation of local health
care providers.

Values:
Accountability « Compassion « Diversity * Equity * Excellence « Education * Respect

Article Il: Responsibilities

The CAB has specific responsibilities to meet the governance expectations of HRSA, while
day-to-day operational and management authority reside with Sacramento County,
Department of Health Services (DHS), Primary Health Services Division staff.

The CAB's responsibilities include providing advice, leadership, and governance in support of
the Health Center's mission. .

The CAB shall have the following responsibilities:

A. Hold final authority on all areas assigned to the Health Center's HRSA scope of project,
including services and supports provided through HRSA grant funds, program income,
and all appropriated funds;

B. Hold monthly meetings and maintain a record of all official actions;

9]

. Approve the annual Health Center budget;
D. Identification, consultation and selection of services beyond those required in law to be
3



provided, as well as the location, mode of delivery of those services and the hours of
operation;

E. Adopt policies necessary and proper for the efficient and effective operation of the
Health Center;

F. Periodic evaluation of the effectiveness of the Health Center in making services
accessible to County residents, particularly those experiencing homelessness;

G. Develop and implement a procedure for hearing and resolving patient grievances;
Approve quality of care protocols and audits;

H. Delegate credentialing and privileging of providers to the Medical Director of the Health
Center, as referenced in the PP CS 07-05 Credentialing and Privileging;

I. Ensure compliance with federal, state, and local laws and regulations;
J. Adopt Bylaws;

K. Approve the selection, performance evaluation, retention, and dismissal of the Health
Center's Project Director;

L. Approve Health Center Sliding Fee Discount policy;

M. Long-term strategic planning, which would include regular updating of the Health
Center's mission, goals, and plans, as appropriate;

N. Approve HRSA applications related to the Health Center, including grants/designation
application and other HRSA requests regarding scope of project;

O. Ensure new board members are oriented and trained regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a board member of an organization subject to FQHC
requirements and satisfying the educational and training needs of existing members;
and

P. Officially, accept the annual audit report and management letter performed by an
independent auditor in accordance with federal audit requirements.

NOTE: No individual member shall act or speak for the CAB except as may be specifically
authorized by the CAB. Members (other than the Health Center Chief Executive Officer/Project
Director) shall refrain from giving personal advice or directives to any staff of the Health
Center.

Article lll: Limitations of Authority

The Board of Supervisors shall maintain the authority to set general policy on fiscal and
personnel matters pertaining to the Health Center, including financial management practices,
charges and rate setting, and labor relations and conditions of employment. The CAB may not
adopt any policy or practice, or take any action, which is inconsistent with the County Code,
or which alters the scope of any policy of the Board of Supervisors regarding fiscal or
personnel issues. All policies and practices must adhere to California law, Brown Act
requirements, and are subject to the Public Records Act.

The COUNTY through its DHS in consultation with the CAB, shall be solely responsible for
the management of the financial affairs of the Health Center, including capital and operating
borrowing; for the development and implementation of financial policies and controls related

4



to the Health Center; and receive, manage, allocate, and disburse, as applicable, revenues
necessary for the operation of the Health Center.

Article IV: Members

Section 1: Membership

There shall be between nine (9) and thirteen (13) at large voting members of the CAB and one
(1) ex-officio non-voting member.

A. Membership categories:

1. Board Members - Consumers:

a. A majority of members of the board shall be individuals who are served

by the Health Center. This means an individual who is a currently
registered patient who has accessed Health Center services in the past
24 months and received at least one service.

As a group, patient members of the board reasonably represent
individuals who are served by the Health Center in terms of demographic
factors such as race, ethnicity gender, socioeconomic status, and age.

At least one representative on the board will be from each targeted
population serviced by the Health Center including homelessness, as
specifically defined under the section 330 grant.

A legal guardian of a patient who is a dependent child or adult, or a legal
sponsor of an immigrant, may also be considered a patient for purposes
of board representation.

2. Board Members - Community Members:

a.

Members of the board have a broad range of skills, expertise and
perspectives representing the community served by the Health Center.

Members shall be individuals from differing segments of the County with
expertise in community affairs, finance, legal affairs, business or other
commercial concerns.

Members may be an advocate who has personally experienced being a
member of or represent, or have expertise in or work closely with the
special population such as individuals experiencing homelessness.

3. The HRSA Project Director, or designee, shall serve as an ex-officio non-voting
member of the CAB.

Section 2: Membership Qualifications

A. No more than half of the Community members may receive more than ten percent (10%)

B.

of his or her annual income from the health care industry (health care industry is
understood to mean any community clinic or hospital providing health services to low
income residents of Sacramento).

All members must work, reside in, or be associated with, Sacramento County. No
member of the CAB shall be an employee or an immediate family member (i.e., spouse,
child, parent, or sibling, [related by blood, adoption, or marriage]) to such an employee
of the Department of Health Services of the County of Sacramento, or CAB officer. No

5



member shall have a financial interest, which would constitute a conflict of interest.
Section 3: Member Recruitment, Selection, and Ratification
A. Establishment of CAB

The initial voting members of the CAB were nominated and appointed by the Board of
Supervisors.

B. Continuation of CAB

1. Member Recruitment

The CAB (or a sub-cCommittee appointed for this purpose) develops a
recruitment plan each year, to identify and recruit potential members that
help fill existing and forecasted gaps in CAB membership including
regarding

a. Member classifications,

b. Populations represented on the CAB,

c. Member skills, experience and perspectives; and

d. Segments of the community about which members have expertise.

The recruitment plan includes strategies designed to effectively reach
targeted groups or classes of individuals.

Expiring Terms

a. Terms end in January. Recruitment for soon to be expiring terms will
begin in September so that candidate members can be considered and
a new CAB member approved prior to the end of the term.

Vacancies during Terms

a. The recruitment plan may designate a period during which membership
applications will be accepted and reviewed

2. Application Review

The application for CAB membership and instructions for completing and
submitting it—as well as information about the Health Center, the CAB, and its
role, as well as open seats and deadlines for application—are made widely
available to possible members, including on the Health Center website.

a. Nominations for voting membership on the CAB may be submitted by
anyone so long as the nominee meets the membership requirements of
these Bylaws.

b. Nominated individuals must submit an application to provide required
information and to verify their interest and ability to serve as CAB
members.

c. Applications are submitted to Health Center staff designated by the

HRSA-ProjectDirectorCAB. Staff verify that applicants meet CAB
membership requirements. The-names-of-all-applicants-All applications
are sent to the Governance Committee, with a document indicating
whether or not the applications indicate that the candidate meets the

6



membership requirements. who-meet-the-membershiprequirements
a#e—presen%ed—te—the—@ea@manee—@eﬁmﬁee—Desmnated staff will

also call the [references ..

d. The Governance Committee of the CAB reviews the membership
applications and talks with possible candidates. The Governance
Committee then brings forward candidates that they recommend for
membership to the full CAB.

3. Approval of CAB members

The CAB (or a designated Committee or staff member) interviews
prospective members that meet membership requirements and review their
skills, experience, perspectives, and other possible contributions to the
CAB. The CAB votes on prospective members.

4. Ratification of CAB members

a. As outlined in the Co-Applicant Agreement between the CAB and the
Sacramento County Board of Supervisors, Once approved by the
CAB, Health Center staff provides the names of approved CAB
members to the Clerk of the Board or designee.

b. The Clerk of the Board, or designee, reviews materials and submits for
ratification by the Board of Supervisors.

c. The Clerk of the Board notifies the designated Health Center staff of
BOS actions related to CAB members and sends a ratification letter to
each new ratified CAB member.

B. Verification of Eligibility of Existing CAB members

1. By December 31st of each calendar year, Health Center staff will verify existing
CAB member eligibility. Each CAB member will complete the Co-Applicant
Board Member Secondary Attestation Form attesting to their eligibility (in
October).

Section 4: Responsibilities and Rights of Members

A. All members must:
1. Attend all CAB meetings, unless excused by the Chair.

2. Be subject to the conflict of interest rules applicable to the Board of Supervisors
of the County of Sacramento and the laws of the State of California.

B. Members shall be entitled to receive agendas, minutes, and all other materials
related to the CAB, may vote at meetings of the CAB, and may hold office and may
chair CAB committees.

Article V: Term of Office

The term of office for CAB members shall be for four (4) years. A member shall be limited
to no more than four (4) consecutive terms of membership. The effective date of
membership corresponds to the date of appointment.

Any elected member who has served four (4) consecutive, four (4) year terms shall not

7

[ Commented [SH1]: Start here next time.




be eligible for re-election until one (1) year after the end of his or her fourth term. Election
to fill a vacancy for less than three (3) years shall not be counted as service of a four (4)
year term for this purpose. Unless terminated earlier in accordance with the Bylaws,
members shall serve their designated term until their successors are elected and
qualified.

Article VI: Removal

Any member may be removed whenever the best interests of the Health Center or the
CAB will be served. The member whose removal is placed in issue shall be given prior
notice of his/her proposed removal, and a reasonable opportunity to appear and be heard
at a meeting of the CAB. A member may be removed pursuant to this section by a vote
of two-thirds (2/3) of the total number of members then serving on the CAB.

Continuous and frequent absences from the CAB meetings, without reasonable excuse,
shall be among the causes for removal. In the event that any member is, absent without
acceptable excuse from three (3) consecutive CAB meetings or from four (4) meetings
within a period of six (6) months, the CAB shall automatically consider the removal of
such person from the CAB in accordance with the procedures outlined in this Article.

The CAB will accept a written or emailed resignation of a CAB member, or a verbal
resignation if given during a full CAB meeting. The CAB Chair or designee will send an
email or letter to the CAB member confirming the resignation. Following seven (7) days
of receipt of the letter by the CAB, the resignation is accepted.

Article VII: Conflict of Interest

A conflict of interest is a transaction with the Health Center in which a CAB member has
a direct or indirect actual or perceived interest by the member in an action, which results
or has the appearance of resulting in personal, organizational, or professional gain.
Conflict of interest or the appearance of conflict of interest by CAB members, employees,
consultants and those who furnish goods or services to the Health Center must be
declared. CAB members are required to declare any potential conflicts of interest by
completing a Conflict of Interest: Disclosure and Attestation Statement per County of
Sacramento policy for members appointed to boards and commissions (see Appendix A)
as well as annually complete the Co-Applicant Board Conflict of Interest: Disclosure and
Attestation Statement (see Appendix B), in which they attest that they are not,

e An employee of the Sacramento County Health Center; nor

e An immediate family member (i.e., spouses, children, parents, or siblings [through
blood, adoption, or marriage]) of an employee or CAB officer.

In situations when a conflict of interest may exist for a member, the member shall declare
and explain the conflict of interest. No member of the CAB shall engage in discussion
about or vote on a topic where a conflict of interest exists for that member. In addition to
the requirements imposed by these Bylaws, CAB members shall also be subject to all
applicable state and federal conflict of interest laws.

Article VIII: Compensation



Members of the CAB shall serve without compensation from the Health Center. Travel
and meal expenses when traveling out of Sacramento County for CAB business shall be
approved in advance by the CAB.

Article IX: Meetings

Section 1: Regular Meetings

The CAB shall meet monthly and maintain records/minutes that verify and document the
Board is functioning. Where geography or other circumstances make monthly, in-person
participation in board meetings burdensome, monthly meetings may be conducted by
telephone or other means of electronic communication where all parties can both listen
and speak to all other parties.

Section 2: Conduct of Meeting

The meeting shall be conducted in accordance with the most recent edition of The Sturgis
Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedure unless otherwise specified by these Bylaws.

Section 3: Open and Public

All meetings will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown
Act, open public meeting law, as amended.

Section 4: Notice, Agenda and Supportive Materials

A. Written notice of each regular meeting of the CAB, specifying the time, place and
agenda items, shall be sent to each member not less than seventy-two (72) hours
prior to the meeting except as permitted by the Ralph M. Brown Act. Preparation
of the agenda shall be the responsibility of the Chair in conjunction with the Project
Director, or his or her designee.

B. The agenda of each regular meeting shall be posted at the Health Center and on
the Health Center's website: https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/
Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-

Board.aspx.

C. Supportive materials for policy decisions to be voted upon shall be distributed to all
members along with the agenda. If, on a rare occasion, such prior submission is
precluded by time pressures, and if the urgency of a CAB vote is established by
the Chair of the CAB, an item may be placed on the agenda although supporting
materials are not available in time to be distributed. However, such material shall
be available at the meeting.

D. Items, which qualify as an emergency, can be added to the agenda pursuant to the
Ralph M. Brown Act.

Section 5: Special Meetings

A. To hold a special meeting, advance notice of such meeting shall be given.

B. The CAB shall hold an annual meeting during November, at such time and place as is
established by the Board upon proper notice, for election of new members and officers,
and for the transaction of such other businesses as may properly come before the

9


https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/%20Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/%20Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx
https://dhs.saccounty.net/PRI/Pages/%20Health%20Center/Co-Applicant%20Board/County-Health-Center-Co-Applicant-Board.aspx

CAB. The annual meeting shall serve as the regular meeting for that month. Notice of
the annual meeting shall be given in writing by the Project Director or his or her
designee to each member not less than thirty (30) nor more than sixty (60) days prior
to the date of such meeting.

Section 6: Quorum and Voting Requirements

A. A quorum is necessary to conduct business, make recommendations, or approve
items. A quorum shall be constituted by the presence of a majority of the appointed
members of the CAB.

B. A majority vote of those CAB members present and voting is required to take any action.

C. Each member shall be entitled to one (1) vote. Voting must be in person or
telephonically; no proxy votes will be accepted.

D. CAB member attendance at all meetings shall be recorded. Members are responsible
for signing the attendance sheet or informing-therequesting permission from the Chair
CAB’s Point of Contact oftheir—participation_to participate |by telephone br
teleconference software_or other means allowed under the Brown Act. The names of
members attending shall be recorded in the official minutes. Where geography or other
circumstances make monthly, in-person participation in board meetings burdensome,
monthly meetings may be conducted by telephone or other means of electronic
communication where all parties can both listen and speak to all other parties, as long
as these are in compliance with the Brown Act. Attendance will be recorded by the
Project Director or his or her designee with a roll call and participation recorded in the
official minutes.

E. The Project Director shall have direct administrative responsibility for the operation of
the Health Center and shall attend, or assign a delegate in his/her absence to all
meetings of the CAB, but shall not be entitled to vote.

Article X: Officers

Section 1: Eligibility

The Chair and Vice-Chair shall be chosen from among the voting members of the CAB.
Members of the CAB shall not be eligible for an officer position until they have served for at
least six (6) months with the CAB as an active member. An active member is defined as a
member who has attended all meetings, with the exception of up to two (2) excused absences,
in the past six months.

Section 2: Nomination and Election

Initial selection of officers upon creation of the CAB transpired at the same CAB Board meeting
following the adoption of these Bylaws.

Henceforth, nominations for officers shall be made at the regular October meeting. A nominee
may decline nomination.

Officers shall be elected annually by a majority vote of those members present and voting, as
the first order of business at the November meeting of the CAB.

Section 3: Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair

10

[Commented [SH2]: Amend after Brown Act training.

]




Only members who have been an active member of the CAB for at least six (6) months are
eligible to be appointed and serve as officers.

Officers shall be elected for a term of one (1) year, or any portion of an unexpired term thereof.
A person shall be limited to no more than four (4) consecutive terms of office. Any elected
officer who has served four (4) consecutive, one (1) year terms of office shall not be
eligible for re-election until one (1) year after the end of his or her second term of office.
This limitation of consecutive terms may be waived by a majority vote of the CAB (with the
officer in question recusing him or herself from the vote) if no other CAB member is willing
to serve in that office. A term of office for an officer shall start January 1, and shall terminate
December 31, of the same year; however, an officer may serve after his or her term ends until
a successor is elected.

Section 4: Vacancies

Vacancies created during the term of an officer shall be filled for the remaining portion of
the term by special election by the CAB, at a regular or special meeting in accordance
with this Article.

Section 5: Responsibilities

The officers shall have such powers and shall perform such duties as from time to time
shall be specified in these Bylaws or other directives of the CAB.

A. Chair

The Chair shall preside over meetings of the CAB, shall serve as Chair of the
Executive Committee, and shall perform the other specific duties prescribed by
these Bylaws or that may from time to time be prescribed by the CAB.

B. Vice-Chair

The Vice-Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair in the latter's absence and
shall provide additional duties that may from time to time be prescribed by the
CAB.

Article XI: Amendments and Dissolution
A. Amendments

The Bylaws may be repealed or amended, or new Bylaws may be adopted at any
meeting of the CAB at which a quorum is present, by two-thirds (2/3) of those
present and voting. At least fourteen (14) days written notice must be given to each
member of the intention as to alter, amend, repeal, or to adopt new Bylaws at such
meetings, as well as the written alteration, amendment or substitution proposed.
Any revisions and amendments must be approved by the CAB. County Board of
Supervisors must approve any change that alters or conflicts with their action
establishing CAB.

B. Dissolution

Dissolution of the CAB shall only be by affirmative vote of the CAB and County
Board of Supervisors at duly scheduled meetings.

11






Certification

These Bylaws were approved at a meeting of the board by a two-thirds (2/3) majority
vote on December 15, 2017.

These Bylaws were amended at a meeting of the board by a two-third (2/3) majority vote

on November 17, 2023. [ Formatted: Highlight

Signed copies available upon request,

lesmmnbo A
202377?7/2024
Jan-WinbiglerSuhmer Fryer, CAB Chair Date

13



Appendix A

Sacramento County Health Center Co-Applicant Board Conflict of Interest:
Disclosure and Attestation Statement

Conflict of Interest: Defined as an actual or perceived interest by the member in an action, which results
or has the appearance of resulting in personal, organizational, or professional gain.

Duty of Loyalty: CAB members shall be faithful to the organization and can never use information
obtained in his/her position as a CAB member for personal gain.

Responsibilities of CAB Members:
A. A CAB member must declare and explain any potential conflicts of interest related to:

1. Using her/his CAB appointment in any way to obtain financial gain for the member's household
or family, or for any business with which the CAB member or a CAB member's household or
family is associated; and/or

2. Taking any action on behalf of the CAB, the effect of which would be to the member's household
or family's, private financial gain or loss.

B. No member of the CAB shall vote in a situation where a personal conflict of interest exists for that
member.

C. No voting member of the CAB shall be an employee or an immediate family member of an employee
of the Health Center; however, a member may otherwise be an employee of the County or
Department of Health Services.

D. No CAB member shall be an employee or an immediate family member of an employee of a
Federally Qualified Health Center.

E. Any member may challenge any other member(s) as having a conflict of interest by the procedures
outlined in the CAB's Bylaws, Article IX.

As a CAB member, my signature below acknowledges that | have received, read, had an opportunity
to ask clarifying questions regarding these conflict of interest requirements and the CAB Conflict of
Interest Policy and that | understand the contents of this policy as it relates to my membership and
responsibilities as a CAB member in capacity of officer, expert volunteer, advocate, consumer, or
County staff member. | understand that any violation of these requirements may be grounds for removal
from CAB membership. | further understand that | may be subject to all other applicable state and
federal conflict of interest requirements in addition to the provisions set forth in these Bylaws.

| declare that the above statement is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge and hereby attest
to the fact that | am not,

A Sacramento County Health Center employee; nor

INITIALS

An immediate family member (defined as a spouse, child, parent, or sibling [by
INnITiALS - blood, adoption, or marriage]) of

A Sacramento County Health Center employee; nor

INITIALS
A Sacramento County Health Center Co-Applicant Board Officer.
INITIALS
PRINTED NAME SEAT NUMBER
SIGNATURE DATE

Co-Applicant Board Bylaws / Revised 11/17/2023
14



	1_AG-CAB-20240315_REV
	2-MIN-CAB-20240214
	3_Project Director CAB Updates for 03-15-24
	4_Medical Director Report March 2024
	5. 2024SCHC QI Plan_post CAB-post AG
	6_PP-CS-11-01-Sliding-Fee-Discount_2023_03_11_24
	Policy:
	B. Establishing and Reviewing the Sliding Fee Schedule and Nominal Charge
	Procedures:
	A. Communication about the SFDP to Patients
	Assessing Patients’ Eligibility for SFDP
	B. Assisting Patients to Apply for SFDP
	C. Billing for SFDP
	D. Reviewing Continued Eligibility for SFDP
	E. Monitoring Adherence to SFDP policies
	F. Evaluating Effect of the SFDP on Patient Usage of Health Services
	References:
	Attachments:
	Contact:
	Approval by the Co-Applicant Board:
	04/21/23
	Sacramento County Health Center
	Attachment A: Sliding Fee Discount Schedule Tables 2024
	Sacramento County Health Center
	2023 Schedule of Sliding Fee Discounts Based on Income and Family Size for Preventive Dental Care
	Full Price
	Tier D
	Tier C
	Tier B
	Tier A
	Nominal
	Persons in Family
	Fee
	>200%
	>175% and ≤200%
	>150% and ≤175%
	>138% and ≤150%
	>100% and ≤138%
	≤100%
	≥$29,161
	$25,516 – $29,160
	$21,871 – $25,515
	$20,121 – $21,870
	$14,581 – $20,120
	≤$14,580
	1
	≥$39,441
	$34,511 – $39,440
	$29,581 – $34,510
	$27,215 – $29,580
	$19,721 – $27,214
	≤$19,720
	2
	≥$49,721
	$43,506 – $49,720
	$37,291 – $43,505
	$34,307 – $37,290
	$24,861 – $34,307
	≤$24,860
	3
	≥$60,001
	$52,501 – $60,000
	$45,001 – $52,500
	$41,401 – $45,000
	$30,001 – $41,400
	≤$30,000
	4
	≥$70,281
	$61,496 – $70,280
	$52,711 – $61,495
	$48,494 – $52,710
	$35,141 – $48,493
	≤$35,140
	5
	≥$80,561
	$70,491 – $80,560
	$60,421 – $70,490
	$55,587 – $60,420
	$40,281 – $55,586
	≤$40,280
	6
	≥$90,841
	$79,486 – $90,840
	$68,130 – $79,485
	$62,681 – $68,130
	$45,421 – $62,680
	≤$45,420
	7
	≥$101,121
	$88,481 – $101,120
	$75,841 – $88,480
	$69,774 – $75,840
	$50,561 – $69,773
	≤$50,560
	8
	≥$111,401
	$97,476 – $111,400
	$83,551 – $97,475
	$76,866 – $83,550
	$55,701 – $76,866
	≤$55,700
	9
	≥$121,681
	$106,471 – $121,680
	$91,261 – $106,470
	$83,959 – $91,260
	$60,841 – $83,959
	≤$60,840
	10
	≥$131,961
	$115,466 – $131,960
	$98,971 – $115,465
	$91,052 – $98,970
	$65,981 – $91,052
	≤$65,980
	11
	≥$142,241
	$124,461 – $142,240
	$106,681 – $124,460
	$98,146 – $106,680
	$71,121 – $98,146
	≤$71,120
	12
	≥$152,521
	$133,456 – $152,520
	$114,391– $133,455
	$105,240 – $114,390
	$76,261 – $105,239
	≤$76,260
	13
	≥$162,801
	$142,451 – $162,800
	$122,101 – $142,450
	$112,333 – $122,100
	$81,401 – $112,332
	≤$81,400
	14
	NO DISCOUNT
	45% discount
	55% discount
	65% discount
	75% discount
	$20
	Fee/Discount*
	*Per visit
	 Full Price 
	 Tier D 
	 Tier C 
	 Tier B 
	Sacramento County Health Center
	2024 Schedule of Sliding Fee Discounts Based on Income and Family Size for Diagnostic Laboratory Services (through Quest Diagnostics)
	Nominal Fee
	Tier A
	Persons in Family
	>100% and ≤138%
	>200%
	175% and 200%
	150% and 175%
	138% and150%
	<100%
	 
	$30,121 
	$26,356- $30,120
	$22,591 -$26,355
	$20,783 -$22,590
	$15,061 -$20,782
	$15,060
	1
	$40,881 
	$35,771 - $40,880
	$30,661 - $35,770
	$28,208 -$30,660
	$20,441 - $28,207
	$20,440
	2
	$51,641 
	$45,186 - $51,640
	$38,731 - $45,185
	$35,632 - $38,730
	$25,821 - $35,631
	$25,820
	3
	$62,401 
	$54,601 - $62,400
	$46,801 - $54,600
	$43,057 - $46,800
	$31,201 - $43,056
	$31,200
	4
	$73,161 
	$64,016 - $73,160
	$54,871 - $64,015
	$50,481 - $54,870
	$36,581 - $50,480
	$36,580
	5
	$83,921 
	$73,431 - $83,920
	$62,941 - $73,430
	$57,905 - $62,940
	$41,961 - 57,904
	$41,960
	6
	$94,681 
	$82,846 - $94,680
	$71,011 - $82,845
	$65,330 - $71,010
	$47,341 - $65,329
	$47,340
	7
	$105,441 
	$92,260 - $105,440
	$79,081 - $92,260
	$72,753 - $79,080
	$52,721 - $72,753
	$52,720
	8
	$116,201 
	$101,676- $116,200
	$87,151 - $101,675
	$80,179 - $87,150
	$58,101 - $80,178
	$58,100
	9
	$111,091 - $126,960
	$126,961 
	$95,221 - $111,090
	$87,603 - $95,220
	$68,481 - $87,602
	$63,480
	10
	$120,506 - $137,720
	$137,721 
	$103,291 - $120,505
	$95,027 - $103,290
	$68,861 - $95,026
	$68,860
	11
	$129,921 - $148,480
	$102,542 - $111,360
	$148,481 
	$111,361 - $129,920
	$74,241 - $102,541
	$74,240
	12
	$159,241 
	$139,336 - $159,240
	$119,431 - $139,335
	$109,876 - $119,430
	$79,621 - $109,875
	$79,620
	13
	$148,751 - $170,000
	$117,301 - $127,500
	$170,001 
	$127,501 - $148,750
	$85,001 - $117,300
	$85,000
	14
	NO DISCOUNT
	Fee/Discount*
	25%
	55%
	65%
	75%
	100%
	*Per test/service
	1Percentage of Federal Poverty Level
	Sacramento County Health Center
	2023 Schedule of Sliding Fee Discounts Based on Income and Family Size for All Other In-Scope SCHC Services (per visit)
	Full Price
	Tier D
	Tier C
	Tier B
	Tier A
	Nominal Fee
	Persons in Family
	>200%
	>175% and ≤200%
	>150% and ≤175%
	>138% and ≤150%
	>100% and ≤138%
	≤100%
	$30,121 
	$26,356- $30,120
	$22,591 -$26,355
	$20,783 -$22,590
	$15,061 -$20,782
	$15,060
	1
	$40,881 
	$35,771 - $40,880
	$30,661 - $35,770
	$28,208 -$30,660
	$20,441 - $28,207
	$20,440
	2
	$51,641 
	$45,186 - $51,640
	$38,731 - $45,185
	$35,632 - $38,730
	$25,821 - $35,631
	$25,820
	3
	$62,401 
	$54,601 - $62,400
	$46,801 - $54,600
	$43,057 - $46,800
	$31,201 - $43,056
	$31,200
	4
	$73,161 
	$64,016 - $73,160
	$54,871 - $64,015
	$50,481 - $54,870
	$36,581 - $50,480
	$36,580
	5
	$83,921 
	$73,431 - $83,920
	$62,941 - $73,430
	$57,905 - $62,940
	$41,961 - 57,904
	$41,960
	6
	$94,681 
	$82,846 - $94,680
	$71,011 - $82,845
	$65,330 - $71,010
	$47,341 - $65,329
	$47,340
	7
	$105,441 
	$92,260 - $105,440
	$79,081 - $92,260
	$72,753 - $79,080
	$52,721 - $72,753
	$52,720
	8
	$116,201 
	$101,676- $116,200
	$87,151 - $101,675
	$80,179 - $87,150
	$58,101 - $80,178
	$58,100
	9
	$126,961 
	$111,091 - $126,960
	$95,221 - $111,090
	$87,603 - $95,220
	$68,481 - $87,602
	$63,480
	10
	$137,721 
	$120,506 - $137,720
	$103,291 - $120,505
	$95,027 - $103,290
	$68,861 - $95,026
	$68,860
	11
	$148,481 
	$129,921 - $148,480
	$111,361 - $129,920
	$102,542 - $111,360
	$74,241 - $102,541
	$74,240
	12
	$159,241 
	$139,336 - $159,240
	$119,431 - $139,335
	$109,876 - $119,430
	$79,621 - $109,875
	$79,620
	13
	$170,001 
	$148,751 - $170,000
	$127,501 - $148,750
	$117,301 - $127,500
	$85,001 - $117,300
	$85,000
	14
	NO DISCOUNT
	$55
	$45
	$35
	$25
	$20
	Fee*
	Sacramento County Health Center
	Sacramento County Health Center
	*Per visit charge
	Attachment B: SCHC Scope of Services
	Appendix C
	Materials to Bring
	Application Process
	Frequently Asked Questions
	Sacramento County Health Center Sliding Fee Information Sheet
	Materials to Bring
	Application Process
	Frequently Asked Questions

	SLIDING FEE SCALE APPLICATION
	Please attach at least one item from each applicable section on the previous page to complete your application. Incomplete applications will not be considered for discount

	Section to be completed by Primary Health Center Staff:
	⬜ Client is not eligible for Sliding Fee Discount Program based on income verification provided.
	/  /



	7_PP-CS-04_25-Request to Change Provider_03_11_24
	Policy
	Procedures
	:References:
	Contact:

	8_PP-CS-02-05 Reporting and Investigation of Complaints and Grievances_031124
	8a_Clinic Service Comment Form_Rev 2024_3_11
	[FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY]

	8b_Supervisor Report of Complaint
	*************************************************************************************
	List Individuals Involved:
	Incident Description:

	8c_SCHC grievance response template
	Member’s Concern from grievance

	9_PP-CS-03-03-Incident-Reporting 031124
	9a_PP-CS-03-03-Incident reporting_Appendices A and B_2024
	9b_Clinic Services Incident Report_02_25_2024
	Sacramento County Health Center
	Incident Report
	Site of Incident:
	Copies distributed to:

	10_PP-CS-03-06-Referral-Management 031124 (3)
	Policy:
	Procedures:
	B. Processing Referral
	5. IPA/Health Plan Denials
	6. Referral CancelationClosures
	7. RT tTimeframes for Rreferral Pprocessing and Ccompletion :
	8. Internal Referrals to Specialists
	9. Medical Records Team (MRT) Review
	10. MRT Scanning Process
	References:
	Attachments:
	Contact:

	12_CAB FSR FY 22-23 rev 2-15-24
	13_Financial Status Report_January
	14_2024 CAB Member Recruitment Plan
	15_Typed in Signature Bylaws_PROPOSED by GOVERNANCE
	Introduction
	Article I: Purpose
	Article II:  Responsibilities
	Article Ill:  Limitations of Authority
	Article IV: Members
	Article V:  Term of Office
	Article VI: Removal
	Article VII:  Conflict of Interest
	Article X: Officers




